Wiltshire Counclil

S

AGENDA

Meeting: Health and Wellbeing Board

Place: Kennet Room - County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, BA14 8JN
Date: Thursday 30 March 2023
Time: 9.30 am

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Ellen Ghey - Democratic Services Officer
of Democratic Services, County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, BA14 8JN, or email
ellen.ghey@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines 01225 713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Membership:

Alan Mitchell Chair of Healthwatch Wiltshire

ClIr Richard Clewer (Chairman) Leader of the Council and Cabinet
Member for Climate Change, MCI,
Economic Development, Heritage,
Arts, Tourism and Health & Wellbeing

Gina Sergeant Healthcare  clinical  professional
director (NHS BSW ICB)

TBC GP clinical lead (Wiltshire Integrated
Care Alliance)

Cllr Laura Mayes Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member
for Children's Services, Education
and Skills

Philip Wilkinson Police and Crime Commissioner

Non-Voting Membership:

Kate Blackburn Director - Public Health (DPS)

Dr Edd Rendell Wessex Local Medical Committee —
Medical Director

Dr Andy Purbrick Wessex Local Medical Committee —
Medical Director

Terence Herbert Chief Executive Wiltshire Council

Stacey Hunter Chief Executive NHS Salisbury


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/

Stephen Ladyman
Douglas Blair

Kevin Mcnamara
Clare Thompson
Clare O'Farrell
Catherine Roper
Alison Ryan

Val Scrase

Lucy Townsend
Emma Legg
Marc House

Sarah Cardy

Clir Gordon King
Clir lan Blair-Pilling

Clir Jane Davies

Fiona Slevin-Brown

TBC
James Fortune
Maggie Arnold

Stephen Otter
Laura Nicholas

Foundation Trust

Wiltshire Health and Care - Chair
Wiltshire Health and Care — Chief
Executive

Chief Executive or Chairman Great
Western Hospital

Director of Improvement &
Partnerships - GWH

Interim Director of Commissioning
Wiltshire Police Chief Constable

RUH Bath NHS Foundation Trust -
Chair

Regional Director B&NES, Devon and
Wiltshire Community Services
Corporate Director of People (DCS)
Director of Adult Social Services
Dorset and Wiltshire Fire & Rescue
Service - Area Manager Swindon and
Wiltshire

VCSE Leadership Alliance
Representative

Opposition Group Representative
Cabinet Member for Public Health
and Public Protection, Leisure,
Libraries, Facilities Management and
Operational Assets

Cabinet Member for Adult Social
Care, SEND, Transition and Inclusion
Place Director — Wiltshire, NHS Bath
and North East Somerset, Swindon
and Wiltshire Integrated Care Board
(ICB)

Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership
Oxford Health (CAMHS)

South West Ambulance Service -
Non-Executive Director

South West Ambulance Service
NHSE, SW Director of Strategic
Transformation / Locality Director

Page 2



Recording and Broadcasting Information

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes
within the Council.

By submitting a statement or question for a meeting you are consenting that you may be
recorded presenting this and that in any case your name will be made available on the
public record. The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.

Parking

To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most
meetings will be held are as follows:

County Hall, Trowbridge
Bourne Hill, Salisbury
Monkton Park, Chippenham

County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer,
who will arrange for your stay to be extended.

Public Participation

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of
guestions and statements for this meeting.

For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution.

The full constitution can be found at this link.
Our privacy policy is found here.

For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for
details

Page 3


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fparking-car-parks&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FK5U7igUosMzWIp1%2BhQp%2F2Z7Wx%2BDt9qgP62wwLMlqFE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Democracy%20Privacy%20Policy&ID=2988&RPID=33233235

AGENDA

Chairman's Welcome, Introduction and Announcements
The Chairman will welcome those present to the meeting.
Apologies for Absence

To receive any apologies for absence.

Minutes (Pages 7 - 36)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2023.
Declarations of Interest

To declare any personal or prejudicial interests or dispensations granted by the
Standards Committee.

Public Participation

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.
Statements

If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 3
speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item.
Please contact the officer named on the front of the agenda for any further
clarification.

Questions

To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council
received in accordance with the constitution.

Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such
guestions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than
5pm on Thursday 23 March 2023 in order to be guaranteed of a written
response. In order to receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no
later than 5pm on Monday 27 March 2023. Please contact the officer named on
the front of this agenda for further advice. Questions may be asked without
notice if the Chairman decides that the matter is urgent.

Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website.

Final Integrated Care Strategy (Pages 37 - 72)

To receive an update on the final Integrated Care Strategy.

Page 4



10

11

12

13

BSW ICS 5 Year Joint Forward Plan Update
To receive an update on the BSW ICS 5 Year Joint Forward Plan.
Final Wiltshire JLHWS (Pages 73 - 88)

To receive an update on the Wiltshire Joint Local Health and Wellbeing
Strategy.

Wiltshire ICA Work Programme Update (Pages 89 - 100)

To receive an update on the ICA Work Programme.

Children's Community Health Services Update

To receive an update on the Children’s Community Health Services.
SEND Strategy Update (Pages 101 - 116)

To receive an update on Wiltshire Council’s SEND and Inclusion Strategy.
Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting is being held on 25 May 2023, starting at 10.00am.
Urgent Items

Any other items of business which the Chairman agrees to consider as a matter
of urgency.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Wiltshire Council

—————

Health and Wellbeing Board

MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD MEETING HELD ON 26
JANUARY 2023 AT KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA ROAD,
TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN.

Present:

ClIr Richard Clewer (Chairman), Alan Mitchell, ClIr lan Blair-Pilling, Cllr Laura Mayes,
Fiona Slevin-Brown (BSW ICB), Terence Herbert (WC CEO), Naji Darwish (OPCC),
Lucy Townsend (DCS), Emma Legg (DASS), Val Scrase (HCRG), Alison Ryan
(RUH), Sarah Cardy (VCS), Stephen Ladyman (WHC), Marc House, (DWFRS), Clare
Thompson (GWH).

Also Present:
Bernadette Knight (VHCA), Melanie Nicolaou, Will Oulton, Charlotte Wootton, Rachel
Kent (PH), William Pett, Emma Higgins, Richard Smale (BSW ICB), Jason Goodchild.

1 Chairman's Welcome, Introduction and Announcements

Clir Richard Clewer, Chair of the Board welcomed everybody to the meeting.

Before the meeting began each Member of the Board, other Councillors and
officers who would be contributing to the meeting were given the opportunity to
introduce themselves.

Cllr Richard Clewer provided the following Chairman’s Announcement that
further winter discharge funds would be available in the form of £600m for next
year and £1bn in 2024-2025.

2 Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Helen Jones, Nicola Hazle (AWP),
Maggie Arnold, Gary McDade (HQSW), Clir Jane Davies, Kate Blackburn
(DPH), Suzanne Wigmore, Dr Edd Rendell, Dr Andy Purbick.

3 Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2022 were presented for
consideration.

Decision - The minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2022 were
agreed as a correct record.

4 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

Page 7



Public Participation

There were no questions raised by members of the Public to be answered at
this meeting.

Integrated Care Strateqy Update

The Board received a presentation from Richard Smale (Director of Strategy
and Transformation, BSW Integrated Care Board). The item covered the
following matters:

It was outlined that the following three key documents must be produced:

i) Integrated Care Strategy — Developed by the ICP by 31 March 2023

i) Integrated Care Implementation Plan — Developed by the ICB by 30
June 2023

iii) Operating Plan 2023/2024 — by 31 March 2023.

It was outlined that currently there are many strategies, and the

Integrated Care Strategy would bring together elements from individual

strategies whilst trying not to add complexity or duplication.

The status of local Health and Wellbeing Strategies was outlined as well

as the lead support responsible for production.

It was outlined that there is a lot of consistency across the local Health

and Wellbeing Strategies in terms of the key themes that have been

identified.

The emergent priorities for the B&NES and Wiltshire Health and

Wellbeing Strategies were discussed and how the sentiments were

shared.

It was stated that the thoughts of the Board would be welcome for

feedback and that this would assist the strategy as it was still in draft

form and would be generated over the coming months.

Comments were received in relation to the following points:

It was stated that currently there are a lot of strategies currently within
the NHS and that there seems to be a lot of plans but not a lot of
direction.

The deadline of March was emphasised with a need to bring partners
together in agreement so that a direction could be set.

It was suggested that the report was medical heavy and that would be a
challenge for those working in social care and wider public health
elements. The importance of having plans as well as strategies was
stressed.

The importance of language was discussed, with it acknowledged that
different areas have differing definitions.

It was suggested that to have a direction would be helpful for the Board
whilst in transition to understand and articulate the problem is that is
looking to be solved.

Page 8



e It was questioned what the strategy would look like in five years’ time as
well as the importance of what priorities are able to be formed out of
data.

e It was questioned how a member of the public would be able to notice a
difference, how would it be possible to describe the difference through a
public rather than service lens and how would it be possible to know
whether something had been achieved in five years.

e |t was suggested that government guidance be considered in relation to
what is expected from the ICS, with the guidance initially clear about
prevention work to take demand out of the system.

e |t was suggested that the strategy is an opportunity to take a step back
and think long term, rather than being reactive.

e In April 2023 BSW would be responsible for pharmacies and dentists, it
could therefore be an opportunity to use this area as an example about
what is being done in communities.

e The importance of understanding each organisation was stressed, with a
need to understand what each service does and achieves.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals:

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted the report
provided.

Draft Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy for consultation

The Board received an update from David Bowater (Senior Corporate
Manager). The item covered the following matters:

e |t was noted that the Wiltshire JSNA had been updated and published in
Autumn 2022 and that this had informed the development of the draft
JLHWS as well as the feedback from the workshop which took place on
1 December 2022. Additionally, it included input from a steering group
that incorporated public health, social care, NHS and Healthwatch
Wiltshire representatives to shape its structure and priorities.

e It was outlined that the JLHWS was a statement of medium-term goals
and would work and be consistent with the themes within the Council
business plan as well as linking to delivery through the Wiltshire
Integrated Care Alliance.

e The strategy would feed through into the Integrated Care Strategy and
Joint Forward Plan and would be an iterative process with due regard to
other strategies and would evolve over the following 6 weeks to provide
improved accountability for delivery from Board partners against
objectives.

e The next steps were outlined in Appendix 2 as well as the meetings and
deadlines. Individual partners were encouraged to take the strategy as
well as the survey through their Boards with a view to bringing the
strategy back to the Health and Wellbeing Board for the March meeting
alongside the latest ICS strategy.

Page 9



The JLHWS would have a 10-year timeline but could be revisited within
that timeframe should the Board need to.

Attached to the minutes was the consultation survey on the Wiltshire
health and wellbeing strategy, which was encouraged to be shared with
others as appropriate with responses to be sent to
David.bowater@wiltshire.gov.uk by 15 March 2023.

Comments were received in relation to the following points:

Positive feedback was received for the report, with emphasis placed in
reference to young people and the report’s reference to the first 1000
days of a child’s life.

It was questioned whether greater emphasis could be given to partners
such as the military.

It was suggested that on page 90 of the report that staff are added to the
discussion around how the current health and care system is under
pressure as staff are currently confused by the ongoing change.

It was suggested that it would be helpful to know where extra money
would be placed if there was to be any, to which it was clarified that from
a Council perspective this would be included within the budget.

The private sector and landlords were identified as a big issue, with there
being a lot of transient people who do not feel connected to their local
community due to having to move around regularly.

It was suggested that in relation to the diagram on page 81 of the
agenda, that there would be something to be gained from a similar
diagram that considered wider determinants that drive health and care
need.

The use of data was discussed, how it could be used to identify trends in
the future.

It was stated that the strategy could be an opportunity to engage with
communities in a coordinated fashion.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals:

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board approved the draft

JLHWS at Appendix 1 for public consultation and would
consider the feedback at its meeting in March.

Integrated Care Alliance Work Programme

The Board received an update from Emma Higgins (Associate Director —
Wiltshire ICA Programme and Delivery Lead). The item covered the following
matters:

An update was provided in relation to the Wiltshire ICA, with it noted that
a Partnership Committee had been established with two meetings having
taken place. Over the coming months the Alliance priorities and work

Page 10


mailto:David.bowater@wiltshire.gov.uk

programme would be refreshed and that there was set to be a committee
meeting in January.

e The interim delivery areas for 2022-2023 were outlined.

e The ICA work programme for 2022/2023 was outlined with specific
reference given to the Alliance Neighbourhood Collaboratives
programme and the Connecting with Our Communities programme.
Progress updates were provided for both programmes as well as the
expected and desired outcomes.

e The principles for the ICA refreshed transformation plan were outlined,
which had arisen through development work which had taken place.

Comments were received in relation to the following points:

e |t was suggested that hospital flow had had now been a problem for 2
years, with 57 people currently stuck in the RUH A and E department,
though they are fit to go home. It was questioned whether it was known
what was stopping each patient from leaving, to which it was clarified that it
was pathways of care that was preventing discharge, though the condition
of each individual patient was known.

e |t was suggested that the ICS is well sighted of the immediate crisis and
that there were other various forums across the ICB where urgent
emergency care was being addressed. Additionally, a half-day workshop
was set to take place for the Health Select Committee, where scrutiny
would be applied to look at the whole system issue.

e |t was suggested that though it is known what pathway of care a patient is
on, it can be complex regarding why a patient is or is not ready to be
despatched. Additionally, the government is helping to maximise capacity to
gain a stronger understanding of the issue.

e Innovative work is being conducted from BSW in coordination with SWAST,
Acute Care providers and community care to look at ambulance calls to
determine those who need an ambulance and those who could be dealt
with differently using a range of options available.

e An accommodation centre has recently started in the Great Western
Hospital, which has consequently seen less use of ambulances as well as
the use of care coordinators to provide prevention and intervention.

e |t was stated that the ICA had been conducting a Discharge
Communications Project to discuss discharge with populations and how
best individuals can remain out of hospital.

e The importance of educating people to call GPs rather than 111 was stated
as well as the use of technology. Additionally, hospital discharge can
sometimes be delayed by the provision of data from the hospital to the
ward.

e It was stated that currently the ICB has a chronic state of escalation and
that this has consequently caused problems. It was acknowledged that
prevention and early intervention offer long term opportunities for the
population as well as being financially sustainable.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals:

Page 11



)

The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted the update

provided.

Better Care Plan

The Board received an update from Helen Mullinger (Commissioning Manager).
The item covered the following matters:

It was outlined that the Wiltshire Locality had been granted approval for
proposed schemes to support hospital discharges during the winter
period December 2022- March 2023. This ‘Adult Social Care Discharge
Funding’ of £4,265,220 was a pooled fund and would be governed under
the existing Section 75 agreement.

It was stated that schemes had been devised working closely with ICB
colleagues to meet the criteria and support the system which was
struggling with extreme pressure.

Several schemes had been in place over Christmas and New Year, with
significant outputs already identified and further people recruited and
interviewed with several Care Act Assessments and backlogs cleared.
Further attention was drawn to the announcement that further winter
discharge funds would be available in the form of £600m for next year
and £1bn in 2024-2025, however it was not yet known what the criteria
for this would be with, the potential for some pilot ideas to take place as
well as planning for next winter.

Comments were received in relation to the following points:

In the week following the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board,
there would be an ICA meeting to discuss how additional funding could
come into Wiltshire and how best this could be used to move towards a
sustainable situation away from an escalation model.

It was stressed that it would be positive for such funding to have
maximum flexibility in terms of how it can be used, with previous
examples having had a lot of conditions attached.

It was suggested that those present had been suffering from a funding
model which had not been fit for purpose as without funding, decisions
are unable to be made.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals:

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted the allocation,

spend and regular monitoring of the BCF winter discharge
funds.

Page 12



Military Covenant

The Report attached to the agenda, was introduced to the Board by Will Oulton
(Corporate Support Manager), with it outlined that the Military Covenant is a
statutory duty which brings the care of the Armed Force Community to the
attention of local health partners. Additionally, that a new statutory duty
commenced in autumn 2022 for healthcare, housing, and education providers to
have due regard to the Covenant and statutory guidance had been published to
inform this.

Bernadette Knight (Veterans Health Care Alliance) was in attendance and was
invited to speak regarding the report. Bernadette raised the following points:

e |t was outlined that the Military Covenant had been strengthened to
ensure that NHS provider organisations would comply with the
overarching principles of the Covenant and therefore ensure that
individuals with military status were not disadvantaged and were able to
have improved healthcare access.

e The Office of National Statistics published in 2022 that 1/25 people in
England have a military status and that such data was important as
without knowing the population, NHS providers would be unable to
conduct an effective needs assessment.

e An overview of the Veterans Health Care Alliance was provided, with it
noted that the Southwest was most compliant in terms of providers
working to the 8 standards outlined to the Health and Wellbeing Board:
with 90% of providers meeting standards.

e The work conducted by the Great Western, Salisbury and Royal United
Hospitals was detailed, with it noted that each hospital was at different
stages of development, with benefits such as improved discharge
identified.

Comments were received in relation to the following points:

e It was stated that the military was of critical importance to the DNA of
Wiltshire, with there being around 32,000 veterans and 20,000 serving
personnel and their families living in Wiltshire.

e The importance of the Covenant as a legal duty to the ICB was stressed,
with the need for assurance and evidence required to meet this duty.

e Jason Goodchild (Ops Manager for Defence Primary Healthcare in
Wessex) stated the importance of the Covenant with examples cited of
the importance of identifying military personnel to ensure that wrap
around care can be provided. Additionally, the issue of soldiers often
being recruited and housed in areas that had not been built for the need
was highlighted.

¢ Reference was drawn to a Healthwatch report produced in 2020 on the
experience of military families with health and social care, which
identified that military families experience the same problems as other
families in Wiltshire but even more so due to moving around. Dentistry
was identified as a significant issue.

Page 13



e A further update from ICB on this issue later in the year would be
welcome.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted the information
presented on the implications of the new Armed Forces
Covenant Duty;

ii) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted Wiltshire Council’s
assessment of how it is meeting its commitments as a signatory
to the Covenant and to the new Duty (appendix 1);

1)) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board agreed to receive an
update from the ICB on NHS activity to deliver the Duty;

iv) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board agreed that partners
continue to work together to consider how the Duty impacts on
their services.

The Chairman called the Board to a break at 11:15pm and resumed at
11:20pm.

11 Workforce Health Campaign

The Board received an update from Rachel Kent (Consultant in Public Health)
The item covered the following matters:

e |t was outlined that in December 2021 the Health and Wellbeing Board
had requested that collectively, the organisations of the Board partake in
a work force wellbeing campaign.

e A focus of the Mental Health and Wellbeing of Workforces was chosen,
with organisations encouraged to go away and then report back once 12
months had passed.

e It was detailed that with Appendix 1 of the report, nine out of eleven
organisations had provided feedback, which had focused on mental
health training to recognise the early signs of mental and ill health: as
well as first aid and suicide prevention training.

e It was noted that Wiltshire Council has introduced Mental Health
Advocates, with was demonstrated within the following video.

Clir lan Blair-Pilling (Cabinet Member for Public Health, Leisure, Libraries,
Facilities Management, and Operational Assets) then spoke to the Board
regarding the next steps of the campaign, which included the following points:

e It was questioned what amongst all the systems in place would be the
verification that the work conducted is working?

e Though two of the eleven organisations had not reported back to be
included within the Appendix, there was nothing to suggested that they
hadn’t conducted any work towards the campaign.

e The following options for possible next steps were outlined to the Board:

Page 14


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8EySE13KSMw&embeds_euri=https%3A%2F%2Fhubblecontent.osi.office.net%2F&source_ve_path=MjM4NTE&feature=emb_title

12

13

i) To carry on with the campaign with a mental health focus.

i) To focus on another area such as smoking reduction, reducing
obesity or reducing substance abuse.

iii) To identify another aspect to build the resilience and capacity of
workforces.

Comments were received in relation to the following points:

e The Chairman noted that from a Wiltshire Council perspective, the
campaign had made a positive impact and there are other areas of
work going on that, such as a piece of work around community
conversations that would report back in 6 months’ time, which the
board could benefit from hearing about.

e From a Great Western Hospital perspective, it was suggested that
mental health had been embedded and there was a desire to now
focus on physical activities as this was a big challenge for public
health.

e It was stated that representatives from the voluntary sector would like
to be included in the campaign, with it acknowledged that some
organisations have mental health training and champions.
Additionally, it is positive to share and learn from information and
materials and that there is a huge workforce within the voluntary
sector who could promote such a campaign.

e |t was suggested that regarding the template it is difficult to separate
out both mental and physical health and that a broader approach
would be welcomed.

Following the conclusion of the discussion, the Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing
Board agreed for the focus of the Workforce Health Campaign to be smoking
cessation. With it the outcome of the campaign to be brought back to the Board
in 12 months’ time to see what had been embedded within organisations.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals:

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted the update
provided.

Date of Next Meeting

It was agreed that the next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board would be
on 30 March 2023, starting at 09.30am.

Urgent Items

Safeguarding Vulnerable People Partnership (SVPP) Annual Report
Submission 2021-2022.

The Board received a presentation from Lucy Townsend (Corporate Director
People). The item covered the following matters:

Page 15



e |t was outlined how the SVPP had responded to its priorities for 2019-
2020, including areas such as Safeguarding Under 1s, Domestic Abuse
and Criminal Exploitation.

e The development and impact of the SVPP was outlined, how
communication had improved with partners, improved oversight and
governance of multi-agency safeguarding training through the creation of
a Practice Development Group as well as working closer with schools,
colleges, and early years settings through an Education Safeguarding
Committee.

e System assurance of the SVPP was detailed, from both a children and
adult’s safeguarding perspective, as well as practice reviews that had
taken place in relation to both children and adults.

e The SVPP Strategic Priorities for 2023/2026 were outlined as well as
Golden Threads to be developed.

e It was noted that the SVPP Annual reports could be accessed via the
following link as well as that the 2021-2022 report attached to the
minutes.

Decision — The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board accepted the
following recommended proposals:

i) The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board noted the report
provided.

(Duration of meeting: 9.30 am - 12.10 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Ben Fielding of Democratic Services,
direct line 01225 718221, e-mail benjamin.fieldingi@wiltshire.gov.uk
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line 01225 713114 or email
communications@wiltshire.gov.uk

Page 16


https://wiltshiresvpp.org.uk/p/about-us/annual-reports-1
mailto:communications@wiltshire.gov.uk

Minute Item 7

Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2023-2032 consultation

The health and wellbeing of the people of Wiltshire is the highest priority for the Wiltshire
Health and Wellbeing Board. We are determined to achieve the best outcomes for our
population through good quality housing, education, employment and safe communities.
Our ambition is to enable and support everyone to flourish and live well. This strategy marks
a chapter in the continuous development for our Health and Wellbeing board. It has been
developed based upon the evidence of need and has enabled the board to focus on four
thematic areas where it can have its most impact ensuring everyone has access to the
opportunities and services that we would expect for our own friends and families.

To read the draft strategy please click here.

We would like your views on the current draft of the strategy by 15 March 2023. Your views
will help to re-shape the final draft.

The 2023 Health and Wellbeing strategy focuses on 4 key themes:

1. Improving social mobility and tackling inequalities
2. Prevention and early intervention

3. Localisation and connecting with communities

4

. Integration and working together

Do you agree with these 4 strategic areas?
Are there any changes you would suggest?

Are there any additional aims you feel should be included?

Page 1T


https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s210821/Draft%20Joint%20Local%20Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Strategy%20Report.pdf

Improving social mobility and tackling inequalities

In everything we do, we consider the impact of the action on social mobility and ask how we
can help to tackle the disparities in opportunities, experience, access and health outcomes
that exist within Wiltshire. We focus on the factors that have the greatest influence on
people’s health, such as ensuring good and secure homes and jobs.

Achieving change
We will:

e Promote health in all policies —including housing, employment and planning. This
will include the development of sustainable communities, whole life housing and
walkable neighbourhoods. The review of Wiltshire’s Local Plan and Local Transport
Plan is an important opportunity to deliver this.

e Support healthy home settings — with action on fuel poverty, helping people to find
work, mental health and loneliness and by increasing digital inclusion

e Give children the best start in life — with a focus on the whole family, family learning,
parenting advice, relationship support, the first 1000 days/ early years and
community health services

e Target outreach activity — identifying particular groups to improve health outcomes
and access to services (identifying and then focusing on several of these each year) -
work to tackle root causes, plan delivery and carry out evaluation.

e Improve access through online services, community locations and mobile services as
well as community diagnostic hubs.

Do you agree with how we will achieve change?

Are there any further methods to achieve change you would like added to the strategy?

Page 13




Prevention and early intervention
We take a long-term view, focusing on what is right for Wiltshire and invest in prevention

and early intervention to tackle problems before they get worse. We encourage personal
responsibility and have a whole life approach to planning and providing services for our
residents alongside this, aimed at improving outcomes in population health and care.

Achieving change
We will:

e Lay the foundations for good emotional wellbeing whilst young — by developing a
coordinated approach and promoting a core offer in schools across Wiltshire
relevant to the challenges young people face (including new challenges such as social
media)

e Encourage personal responsibility across the life course —in all schools, with working
age adults and for the elderly — focusing on healthy lifestyles, smoking cessation,
alcohol and substance misuse

e Prevent ill health - through increased uptake of screening, health checks and
immunisations as well as ensuring the best use of antibiotics.

e Enable a healthy workforce through targeted preventative activity

e Adopt a proactive population health management approach — rolling this out to new
areas (such as management of moderate frailty) each year to enable earlier
detection and intervention

Do you agree with how we will achieve change?

Are there any further methods to achieve change you would like added to the strategy?

Page 19




Localisation and connecting with communities

We ensure our dialogue with communities is open, transparent and inclusive, in the right
place and at the right time so that the distinctive needs of local communities are met. We
enable stronger and resilient communities and support broader social and economic
development

Achieving change
We will:

e Support local community action — through initiatives such as neighbourhood
collaboratives allied to the development of Primary Care Networks, the community
mental health model, area board activity using community area JSNAs to inform local
action planning and the allocation and bidding for wellbeing grants

e Pilot community conversations — starting with neighbourhoods in Wiltshire that have
significant deprivation and roll these out gradually across the county.

e Consider the way in which we buy goods and services can deliver improved local job
opportunities (acting as ‘anchor’ institutions) and other wider benefits (social value)

e Embed Healthwatch Wiltshire and voluntary and community sector voices in
relevant decision-making structures and ensure the public voice is heard with
consultation results and co-production reflected in decision papers and relevant
attendance at the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Do you agree with how we will achieve change?

Are there any further methods to achieve change you would like added to the strategy?

Page 20




Working together and integration
We design and deliver our activities in partnership with service users, local communities and

public sector partners. We collectively consider how to integrate our work, get maximum
value for public sector spend and plan our use of the public sector estate together.

Provide integrated, personalised services at key stages in a person’s life — this will
include starting to complete later life planning with people in their early 60s (or
before that in more deprived areas) so that we are preparing for when they are
older, end of life care, and increasing the provision of personal budgets

Boost ‘out-of-hospital’ care, encouraging a ‘hospital without walls” model with
improved digital and local access to consultants, and dissolving the divide between
primary and community health services - through coordination of community multi-
disciplinary teams, clustering services around primary care networks, and
guaranteeing support to people in care homes

Enable frontline staff to work more closely together — planning our workforce needs
together, developing case studies on front line cooperation, supporting shared
records and IT and sharing estates wherever possible

Ensure carers benefit from greater recognition and support by improving how we
identify unpaid carers

Improve integration of services through community healthcare, primary, secondary
and tertiary healthcare (including specialist services, armed forces and their families,
pharmaceutical services and healthcare in the justice sector)

Drive improvement by delivering our vision through collective oversight of quality
and performance, reconfiguration of clinical pathways, recommissioning of services
and overseeing pooled budgets and joint teams together (through the Wiltshire
Integrated Care Alliance). The ICA will bring together officers from the relevant
organisations and report regularly to the Health and Wellbeing Board on progress
against this plan and its own work programme as well as the Better Care Plan.

Do you agree with how we will achieve change?

Are there any further methods to achieve change you would like added to the strategy?

Are there any additional strategies or plans you feel should be added to the diagram at the

end?

Any other comments?

Please email your response to David.bowater@wiltshire.qov.uk by 15 March 2023.

Page 2%



mailto:David.bowater@wiltshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



.

Wiltshire
Safeguarding

Vulnerable
People Partnership

Annual Report 2021-2022

Contents

Chapter 1: Introduction and context

Chapter 2: Responding to our forward plan 2020-2021
Chapter 3: SVPP Development and Impact

Chapter 4: Practice reviews — activity and impact
Chapter 5: System Assurance

Chapter 6: Impact of multi-agency training

Chapter 7: Independent Scrutiny

Chapter 8: Next steps and priorities for the partnership

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page 23

Page 2
Page 2
Page 4
Page 5
Page 9
Page 12
Page 13
Page 13

Page 1 0f 13




Chapter 1: Introduction and context

This is the SVPP’s third Annual Report. The safeguarding arrangements have continued to evolve and have
strengthened the links with the Community Safety Partnership.

In January, the Independent Chair stepped down and the safeguarding partners committed to take on the chairing of
the SVPP Executive going forward; held in the first 12 months by the local authority.

The impact of the pandemic continues to be felt by all agencies in relation to capacity and resourcing and this has at
times presented challenges for the partnership to push forward work in a timely way, for example embedding the
work of the new Practice Development group.

Last year we set out to ensure that safeguarding systems and safeguarding leadership are an integral part of
developing a safe and effective ICB and with their introduction delayed until July 2022 this will be a focus during
2022-2023.

Whilst we have been able to embed new ways of working introduced during the pandemic, many of which support
partnership working, all organisations continue to experience significant pressures which can impact on their ability
to proactively engage with partnership work. Continuing to have a flexible and responsive partnership helps us
respond to such challenges whilst focussing our activity on some key areas of work.

We have however been able to further develop our case review processes, receiving very positive feedback on our
rapid reviews for children from the national Child Safeguarding Practice Review Panel, improve our communication
with partners through our new website and improve partnership working with schools.

Chapter 2: Responding to our forward plan 2019-2020

In last year’s report we committed to drive forward work in the following areas:

Safeguarding of Under 1yrs

Under 1s remain one of our most vulnerable groups in Wiltshire with 9 of the 14 notifications to the national CSPR
Panel submitted since 2018 relating to children under 1. In response a Safeguarding Under 1s Steering group was
established in January 2021 to ensure better oversight of and the ability to further develop the work taking place to
safeguard them and share existing and developing best practice in this area. This group sits across the ICB footprint -
BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire - in recognition of the role of health in this agenda and that families in Wiltshire will
travel to one of 3 acute hospitals across this footprint, only one of which is in Wiltshire.

To date this group has been able to:

e Map existing service provision for under 1s and their families - as well as identifying focussed provision from
which learning can be shared it has also identified a lack of clarity on the commissioning and use of Dads Pad
and inconsistent use of ICON across BSW. Knowing where the gaps or inconsistencies are will now enable us
to address these.

e Analysed the learning from case reviews relating to under 1s across BSW to understand themes and key
practice issues which can then be addressed through further guidance or training for example.

e Improve our understanding of barriers to working with and engaging fathers by learning from existing
practice in this area, including from the Dads Matter Too Project in Wiltshire.

e Led work on developing a joint policy on injuries to non-mobile babies to ensure consistency of messages
and response across BSW.

e Have oversight and scrutiny of our response to the findings from the national CSPR Panel reports, the Myth
of invisible men and Out of Routine.

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page 28 Page 2 of 13



Domestic Abuse

The duties set out in the Domestic Abuse Bill have been incorporated into the Domestic Abuse Local Partnership
Board in Wiltshire. In addition, a robust health needs assessment has informed the new Improvement Plan 2022-
2024. This sets out clear strategic priorities and outcome measures to evidence impact. In addition, further impact
on this agenda can be evidenced through:

e the creation of a DA Military Forum in recognition of the specific needs of this community in Wiltshire and
this group creates an opportunity for agencies to build relationships and networks and raises awareness of
domestic abuse and the impacts within military families.

e afocus on employers having appropriate support and guidance in place for staff who are victims of domestic
abuse.

o development of a data dashboard.

A new Perpetrator and Offender Group has also been established and the impact of this has been to develop a DA
Perpetrator Focussed Strategy in Wiltshire for the first time.

Criminal Exploitation

We set out in the previous annual report the creation of a Pan Wiltshire all age Exploitation Subgroup, sitting across
both the Wiltshire and Swindon safeguarding partnerships. During 2021-2022 a decision was made to create
separate groups focussed on children and adults reporting into one strategic group to increase effectiveness and
focus on key issues; and in recognition that understanding of exploitation and related practice in adults is less
embedded than for children.

This agenda remains a key focus however requires a clear strategic direction to further drive activity and outcomes
and ensuring all agencies are actively engaging with the work needed through the subgroup. Ensuring the strategic
group has clear line of sight to operational practice and the mechanisms in place, to support this agenda, such as the
Safer Young People Group, is necessary to provide assurance that we are protecting children and adults from this
form of abuse in Wiltshire and to better enable us to evidence impact of this work. Working across Swindon and
Wiltshire has brought benefits and challenges and the partnership will need to decide how work can best be taken
forward in Wiltshire.

Operationally work to safeguard children and young people from exploitation has been further driven forward by the
piloting of the risk outside the home child protection conference process, supported by the DfE. This is innovative
work, and Wiltshire is the only area nationally to pilot this, offering a different approach where the risk is
extrafamilial, working closely with parents as safeguarding partners. Whilst this new approach continues to be
tested, internal auditing and feedback from the contextual safeguarding research team at Durham University
suggests this is a promising alternative child protection pathway for children at risk of significant harm outside of the
home. The process has so far demonstrated evidence of supporting advocacy of children and protective parents and
focussing planning on the source of harm. Wiltshire will continue to test this approach and develop the contextual
interventions available through our further partnership with Durham University and it’s ‘Planning for Safety’
research strand. Through this research strand, Wiltshire’s approach is also being tested by 3 other local authorities,
demonstrating the lead role Wiltshire has nationally in developing practice in this area.

In addition, the roles and functions of the Vulnerable Adolescent Risk Management and Vulnerable Adolescents
Contextual Safeguarding panels have been reviewed to ensure effectiveness. In response to the learning from these
meeting structures, and with consideration of Wiltshire’s strength-based approach, the Safer Young People groups
have been developed: the Safer Young People Context Meetings provide locality based multi-agency oversight to
groups and contexts of concerns; whilst the Safer Young People Partnership Group provides strategic oversight of
exploitation and other forms of harm outside the home. A review completed in 2022 found that these meetings are
successful in pulling together shared aims and language around extra-familial harm and provided an essential
platform to share information between the professional networks. The approach was found to support planning
which addresses the risks in the context where harm occurs, which is vital when working to safeguard adolescents.

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page 29 Page 3 of 13



Understanding the protective nature of being in education has led to an improved focus on children missing
education and children who are electively home educated or who are subject to CiN or CP. The impact of this work,
which is ongoing, is that it has improved our ability to know who the most vulnerable children are and put in place
additional plans to support and protect them. This data is used to inform targeted work to ensure these pupils are
receiving a full-time suitable education, through the extended duties of the Virtual School, Attendance Strategy and
Targeted Education Service.

Leadership and Culture

The move by the safeguarding partners to take on the chairing of the SVPP Executive demonstrates their willingness
to provide strategic leadership. This was also a focus of the Southwest Regional Improvement Alliance event: The
role of safeguarding partnerships in regional sector lead improvement in July 2021, bringing together safeguarding
partners from across the region for the first time. This event helped inform scrutiny practice across the

region. Partners identified that the focus should be on peer challenge, learning from and sharing best practice from
reviews and independent scrutiny. This new network will be further built on in 2022 to help strengthen partnerships
and their impact across the southwest.

Progressing a DfE funded pilot to improve our data analysis and intelligence-led approach to safeguarding

The SVPP received funding from the DfE to take forward work to make better use of data and intelligence in the
system informed by the voice of children and families and practitioners. We were unsuccessful in recruitingto a
Data Analyst role to take forward the work to collate and analyse intelligence and how this can inform and improve
the safeguarding system, however we have been able to:

e complete the design, testing and launching of a new website which is now live — it is the intention that this
function as the site for all case based and research learning including the development of podcasts and
interviews available to practitioners to download and listen when convenient.

e explore the ability to set up chat rooms to support frontline practice and member engagement.

e work with schools and designated safeguarding leads to ensure the website meets their specific needs and
as a way to better engage the education sector in the work of the partnership.

The final area of focus set out in last year’s report relates to a programme of independent scrutiny, which in 2022-23
will include independent scrutiny of the progress against the partnership priorities.

Chapter 3: SVPP Development and Impact

Improving communication with practitioners and partners

Our Safeguarding Plan set out our ambition to “ensuring users and the wider community are properly engaged in the
work of the SVPP”. The Community Voice and Engagement Officer post has supported engagement with service
users and practitioners and improved and sustainable communications across the partnership during the past 12
months.

This post has delivered a new partnership website bringing together the existing SVPP website, Wiltshire
Safeguarding Adults Board (WSAB) website and creating information on the work of the Community Safety
Partnership (CSP) for the first time. This has:

e provided centralised communications across the partnership and is helping us to build an identifiable brand.

e improved navigation and user experience and therefore ability of access information, including learning from
case reviews.

e creation of an e-newsletter as a more effective way to share safeguarding news and partnership updates.

e the ability to set up member only forums and work is currently taking place to consider how we can use this
to support subgroup members and provide induction information to help new members understand their
role within the partnership.

e improved our ability to monitor use and an analysis of website usage, showing that the new site has an
average of over 2000 views per month with the majority of people visiting the Learning Hub and News pages

e added to our ability to use a range of media through which to disseminate learning and information, such as
webinars and podcasts

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page 26 Page 4 of 13



This post has also mapped voice activity across the partnership and provided a number of recommendations on
which work is currently taking place to ensure voice informs the work of the SVPP.

Communication between the SVPP and wider stakeholder has also been improved through our Stakeholder Network
meetings; established in January 2022 to strengthen communication between the SVPP and its partners. This
meeting has a broad remit and is open to all practitioners and managers, including volunteers, who work with
children or adults in the county. Network meetings this year have focussed on: learning from case reviews including
the CSPR national Panel report on Myth of Invisible Men; Information sharing and provided the opportunity for
attendees to discuss safeguarding issues they are experiencing in their own practice.

Improving our oversight and governance of multi-agency safeguarding training
A new Practice Development Group was established in January 2022, to provide governance of the multi-agency
training offer for both the children’s and adults workforce. Progress has not been at the pace we would have
wanted due to operational pressures, however such a governance structure has not previously been in place and the
groups is making headway with:
e identifying areas for practice development and make recommendations regarding the facilitation and
commissioning of appropriate training resources
e ensuring the regular review and evaluation of the training, ensuring training content is current and relevant
and aligns with SVPP priorities and wider agendas to create safer communities
e improving the learning loop from case reviews and audit activity back into practice
e exploring learning opportunities with neighbouring partnerships.

Improving our ability to work closely with early years, schools and colleges
A new Education Safeguarding Committee has been established improving the links between the SVPP and
education settings, including early years. This is a significant addition to the partnership and has already evidenced
impact through:

e improved oversight and governance of safeguarding training provided for schools

e improved line of sight into children missing education and electively home educated children

e improved our ability to feed relevant learning from case reviews into the education system

e improved oversight of safeguarding complaints to Ofsted

e improved understanding of local themes from Ofsted inspections enabling plans to be drawn up to address

these
e driving the response to and support for schools in relation to peer-on peer abuse.

Improving our ability to work across the partnership structure

Restructuring of the strategic roles within the SVPP Business Support team and the creation of Partnership Lead
posts have enabled a clearer strategic focus and the ability to work across the three agendas: safeguarding of
children; safeguarding of vulnerable adults; community safety partnership. These roles now work to ensuring the
necessary integration across the three agendas, preventing duplication and enabling learning from case reviews to
more effectively be shared across the multiagency safeguarding arrangements.

Chapter 4: Practice Reviews — activity and impact

The Partnership Practice Review group (PPRG), which is our local mechanism for the identification and reviewing of
all case reviews for the partnership including serious child safeguarding cases, is now well embedded. The
introduction of a Development Plan and key performance indicators have enabled further improvements to the case
review process this year including:
e (Clarifying and improving links to the LeDeR process in Wiltshire to ensure relevant learning is shared and
duplication of review processes avoided.

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page 27 Page 5 of 13



e Implementation of a standardised process for publication of final reports for statutory reviews to include the
publication of a briefing, summary slides for agency use and virtual briefings to improve and better support
the sharing of learning by the partnership and within agencies.

e Reintroduction of the requirement on agencies to tell us how they have disseminated learning and any
impact.

o  Workshops with practitioners who have been involved in case reviews to ensure our guidance for
participants is clear, and that they feel supported and safe to participate in case reviews at both an agency
and partnership level.

e Introduction of a case data tracker to enable better oversight of timeliness of notifications and publication of
reviews and will enable further analysis of themes and characteristics of cases.

e Introduction of a case learning tracker enabling improved oversight of the actions in response to
recommendations and learning and their impact.

The PPRG Development Plan for 2022-23 will focus on improving family involvement in case reviews, improving
timeliness of publication of statutory reviews, and further embedding the case learning tracker and ability to
evidence impact on practice. Where the publication of the final report is outside the expected 6 months’ work will
have already started on taking the learning forward to ensure it is implemented quickly.

Consideration has been given to the dip in referrals to the case review group with no cases relating to children
referred in the last 2 years that have not been notified. Whilst the PPRG will not review cases that do not provide
new learning we need to be assured that all partners are aware of and feel able to refer cases into the group
including near misses and examples of good practice. Regional benchmarking in relation to rapid reviews and CSPRs
is taking place but we remain an outlier in relation to the commissioning of SARs. Further communications
reminding partners about the referral process have been put in place and a wider partners meeting planned for
November 2022 will provide a further opportunity to discuss this with partners.

Case reviews relating to children

During 2021-2022 there were 3 referrals into the PPRG, and all of these notified to the CSPR Panel. Two of these
cases progressed to a CSPR. Whilst it remains a local authority duty to notify in Wiltshire, we have embedded a
multi-agency discussion to inform the decision about whether a notification is made. This has created ownership of
and responsibility for this process by all safeguarding partners.

LCSPR Long term sexual abuse of children in care (Rapid Review 1)

This case related to disclosure of long-term sexual abuse within a long-term fostering placement by foster carer
father. The LCSPR found that: there were no systemic practice issues; few, if any, indicators that the children
were being sexually abused prior to the disclosure; and there were no concerns about the placement which
was considered to be stable and providing a good quality of care. No practitioner considered the possibility of
sexual abuse; it was “unthinkable”.

One of the strengths of this review was the voice of the two sibling victims who were interviewed by the report
author. They provided insights into the grooming behaviour of the perpetrator as well as important insights
into the disclosing of abuse: one of the siblings told us that she wanted to be in control of the disclosure and
would have been unlikely to disclose even if asked directly; that she “put on an act to hide the abuse”; and she
worried that she would not be believed.

Much of the other learning from this case is not new but this case has reinforced the following:
* That a child who is being sexually abused may not show any obvious symptoms that suggest they are
being abused.
* That all professionals need to be able to consider the ‘unthinkable’ about carers who they may know
well and who they may work closely with and be alert to the possibility of sexual abuse.

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page 23 Page 6 of 13


https://wiltshiresvpp.org.uk/assets/02523611/cspr-long-term-sexual-abuse-of-children-in-care.pdf

* Schools are a key part of the system of providing a general environment where children know who
they can talk to about sexual abuse and what will happen if they tell someone.

In response the report and response to recommendations have been reported into the Corporate Parenting
Panel and work is taking place with staff from schools about what more education settings can do to support
children to disclose harm and abuse.

The CSPR was published within 8 months of initiating the review.

Rapid Review 2: Sudden unexpected death of a 1-year-old child in the context of significant risk of physical
harm.

This case highlighted the importance of organisational memory in order for the system to be alerted to known
offenders who are not under probation or MAPPA review case reviews. The impact of this is that the system
should be better able to identify such individuals at the earliest opportunity following work by police and social
care agencies to put in place flags on their systems.

Learning in relation to safe sleeping is being responded to by the new Safeguarding Under 1s Steering group as
referenced in Chapter 3.

The national CSPR Panel described the rapid review report for this case as “exemplary”, further providing
evidence that we have a high quality and robust process for rapid reviews in Wiltshire. This case did not
progress to a LCSPR.

LCSPR Eva (Rapid Review 3) — non-accidental injuries to a 3-month-old baby resulting in her death
(published August 2022)

This local case reflected some if the issues set out in the CSPR Panel Report, The myth of invisible men, and the
key learning in this case related to the understanding and assessment of the risk of problematic cannabis use
and its impact on parenting capacity. In response the development of training and further guidance is
underway.

An interview with the report author has been made available as a webinar and this has proved to be a very
successful way of sharing learning on a case review with over 260 views to date and we will continue to expand
the use of different mediums for sharing of learning.

The CSPR was published within 9 months of initiating the review with some delay in publication in order to
avoid sensitive dates.

Wiltshire was also involved in a further rapid review following the death of a Wiltshire child in a residential mental
health hospital in another local authority area. The rapid review was completed by the partnership in which the
hospital was located, on the advice of the CSPR Panel. Learning from this case has led to improvements in the
pathway for information sharing on children that are in hospital and are receiving education provision.

The Joint communication from CSPR Panel and DfE received in December 2021 prompted a further analysis of

practice in relation to case reviews for children as set out in the table below, providing further assurance to the SVPP

Executive in relation to our arrangements in Wiltshire for the identification and reviewing of serious child
safeguarding cases, as set out in Working together 2018.

Activity Response/ Wiltshire Position (as at April 2022)

All serous incident notifications must be sent to 10 notifications made since June 2018

the Panel within 5 working days of the local All made within 5 working days

authority becoming aware of the incident

Rapid Reviews should be submitted to the Panel 8 Rapid Reviews completed since June 2018

within 15 working days of the safeguarding 7 submitted within 15 working days (date set out by the
partners becoming aware of the incident Panel) 1 submitted on day 16

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page 29 Page 7 of 13


https://www.wiltshiresvpp.org.uk/assets/02523611/cspr_baby_eva_final_report_002.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1017944/The_myth_of_invisible_men_safeguarding_children_under_1_from_non-accidental_injury_caused_by_male_carers.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1017944/The_myth_of_invisible_men_safeguarding_children_under_1_from_non-accidental_injury_caused_by_male_carers.pdf

Full Reports should be sent to the Panel and the CSPR Thematic Review into significant physical injuries in
Secretary of State seven working days in advance under 1s — published 6 months after initiation

of the publication date. CSPR Family N — published 9 months after initiation
Local CSPRs should be published within 6 months | *Initiation of CSPR defined locally as: date of receipt of
of initiation*. the letter from the CSPR Panel following submission of

the rapid review.

Case data tracker now in place to improve tracking of
timeliness of notifications, rapid reviews and publication

of reports.

Complete/incomplete and unpublished SCRs sent No incomplete SCRs outstanding.
to safeguarding partners, the panel and DfE

Safeguarding Adult Reviews

As part of the Safeguarding Adult Board responsibilities of the SVPP, the partnership is required to commission
Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs) when an adult with care or support needs dies as a result of abuse or neglect,
whether known or suspected, and there is concern that partner agencies could have worked together more

effectively to protect the adult.

Two referrals were received by the PPRG in relation to adults during 2021-2022, none of which met the threshold for
a SAR. Both cases related to suicide/sudden deaths and further join up with the Suicide Reduction Group and their
real time tracking of suicides/sudden deaths will enable any safeguarding themes to be identified.

One SAR was published in 2021-2022, as set out below.

SAR Adult L

This case was referred to the SVPP following the death of a vulnerable 59-year-old woman with significant physical
and mental health needs and a diagnosis of terminal alcoholism. Adult L had multiple hospital admissions and a
history of addiction to opiates. She had also made allegations of domestic abuse against her husband; frequently
cancelled appointments to address her care and support needs; and lived in conditions considered to be unhygienic

and unsafe. This review found that:

for adults with care and support needs, consideration needs to be given to any risks posed by those who
care for them, and that seemingly unwise choices could be the result of coercion and controlling behaviour

by another person.
practitioners find it difficult when working with adults who display high risk behaviours who are deemed to
have mental capacity but are actively resistant to intervention.

Recommendations included:

Increasing awareness of how coercive and controlling behaviours may inhibit people disclosing or revealing
the extent of domestic abuse. Work is underway to develop a DASH risk assessment for adults with care and
support needs with a supporting toolkit to assist conversations about the dynamics of domestic abuse.
Consideration of services for adults adopting the SVPP ‘Case Resolution Protocol’ to support cases where
levels of risk may be severe and the way forward not clear.

Reviewing and disseminating the High-Risk and Self Neglect multi-agency procedures to include clear
pathways for convening professionals’ meetings, escalation of concerns and arrangements for agreeing on
lead agency and key worker to coordinate practice. Both documents were updated, and their use assessed
using a questionnaire and feedback from practitioners was that both procedures were effective. In addition,
a webinar on self-neglect was held as part of the SVPP Safeguarding Week, using SAR L as a case study to
raise awareness of the procedures and explore best practice in managing cases with longstanding and
complex needs.

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page 20 Page 8 of 13




Non-statutory reviews relating to adults with care and support needs

The partnership is proactive in reviewing cases referred into the PPRG which do not meet the threshold for a
statutory review, where the potential for new learning is identified. Learning from these non-statutory reviews is
disseminated to partner agencies for internal dissemination only.

Case 1: A death of an adult with learning disabilities in a care home. This case had been subject to a LeDeR review
and although did not meet the criteria for a statutory SAR the PPRG felt there were opportunities to learn from
practice. Learning from this case highlighted: the complexity of navigating services that support adults with learning
disabilities; diagnostic overshadowing; and the need for greater awareness about routes to escalate safeguarding
concerns.

Learning from SARS (national): responding to SAR Joanna, Jon & Ben

Following the requirement that all CCGs review the care of all individuals with a learning disability and/or autism in a
mental health hospital, the CCG Programme Manager presented an update to the Partnership Practice Development
Group in February. Findings of all the reviews for the 26 BSW residents identified as being in a hospital setting as of
31st October 2021 and meeting the criteria set. There will be a national response to the regional summaries, but
initial findings suggest that several individuals who do not need to be in hospital, have been for some time, and the
challenge is how to create the capacity within the system to discharge them to homes of their own. It is important
to note that the concerns identified in the SAR might well apply to individuals in a range of settings, and not just
within hospital care.

Domestic Homicide Reviews

DHR Ellie was published in November 2021 and relates to the murder of a teenager by her ex-boyfriend. The
learning from this case has focused on support for and awareness raising with young people in relation to the signs
and symptoms associated with domestic abuse and coercive control and highlighting healthy relationships.

Two further reports have been submitted to the Home Office Quality Assurance and whilst we await feedback
response to the recommendations are under way.

Chapter 5: System Assurance

As previously stated, the Independent Chair, Mark Gurrey, stepped down in January 2022. He has continued to
provide some independent oversight through his involvement as author of CSPR Eva, published in August 2022.

Meetings with the senior safeguarding partners have continued pan Wiltshire. This has ensured that they have a
direct line of sight into the effectiveness of partnership arrangements and specific safeguarding issues. Although a
clear programme of independent scrutiny has yet to be set out there is a commitment to independent scrutiny of
progress against the priorities in 2022-2023.

External scrutiny of the systems has taken place through the following inspections:

Ofsted Focussed visit on the experience of care leavers which concluded that leavers are supported by a “passionate,
skilled and stable workforce” with care leavers receiving the “right support, at the right time, to help them make
progress in their lives”.

HMICFRS Police Inspections — PEEL Inspection and national Child protection Inspections identified a number of
recommendations for the force as referenced on page 13.

The SVPP Executive now review quarterly updates on inspections that have taken place to improve oversight of this
element of external scrutiny and any key safeguarding concerns identified through this process.

A partnership risk register has also been established to ensure the SVPP executive are sighted on significant risks
across the safeguarding system, and this will be further embedded over the next 12 months.

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page A% Page 9 of 13



Children’s Safeguarding
Areas of focus and activity remain driven by either national agendas or issues raised locally, led by the Families and
Children’s Systems Assurance group (FCSA).

Child Death Process

The child death process in Wiltshire is well embedded and effective, however there was a challenge back to the Child
Death Overview Panel to improve the quality of their annual report and to address the backlog of actions and
oversight of this. There is a new Chair in place, and actions have now been addressed and updated and the revised
annual report sets out key learning points and actions to address these more clearly. Gaps in attendance at the
panel have also been addressed.

Everyone’s Invited

There was a prompt and effective response to Everyone’s Invited, with exceptional meetings held to ensure a joined-
up partnership response and identify specific actions for the Wiltshire schools named. Information from Operation
Hydrant was fed into the meetings and provided access to all the testimonies, informing our response, which
included:

e Letter sent to all schools making them aware of the website and recommending action they could take in
relation to peer-on-peer abuse; all independent and secondary schools directly contacted as a follow up to
the letter to ensure they were sighted on it.

e Individual contact with all schools named and relevant follow up.

e One Independent School in Wiltshire received more than 20 testimonies and a Safeguarding Review was
carried out led by Directors from Children’s Social Care and Education and Skills at Wiltshire Council.

e Police reviewed intelligence on all schools named.

e Review of relevant PHSRE resources for schools by the Healthy Schools Coordinator.

The direct work with schools was led by the School Effectiveness Team supported by the Young People’s Service
which provided additional expertise in relation to contextual safeguarding:

Backlog in the Child Internet Exploitation Team

Operationally, police raised the backlog in their Child Internet Exploitation Team in relation to online sex offender
referrals. Police were challenged to why they had not raised this with the partnership as this was potentially leaving
children at risk of harm. The backlog has been proactively addressed with clear oversight of the plan to reduce the
backlog, within the FCSA, whilst acknowledging the unprecedented demand. In addition, work was undertaken to
review all cases that were waiting to be reviewed to ensure there were no children at risk of harm whilst further
capacity and a new operating model were put in place to enable earlier sharing of information with partners to
inform risk assessments.

Improving Line of sight

There has been a challenge to partners to improve the exception reporting and therefore system assurance

about how well the system and its constituent parts are working, including commissioned services for children.
Improved line of sight is being embedded and this includes areas identified though the Solihull JTAI Report prompted
by the murder of Arthur Labinjo Hughes and the national CSPR Review Child Protection in England.

Adult Safeguarding

Following restructure of the SVPP in 2020 to better coordinate the partnership functions in relation to adult
safeguarding the Safeguarding Adults’ System Assurance (SASA) Group has been further developing to provide
assurance to the SVPP that systems in relation to the safeguarding of vulnerable adults are working effectively. Key
areas of work and impact are set out below:

e Regular review of data from the Adult MASH to consider the number and nature of referrals that are taken
to a s42 enquiry. The SASA group scrutinise data and request assurance on any areas of concern. For
example, concerns relating to low numbers of self-neglect referrals were explored and the group received
assurance that local practice guidance recommends self-neglect cases should be worked in long term teams.

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page 28 Page 10 of 13



e Scrutiny of MASH Audit feedback: the report highlighted the lack of available specialist provision and the
impact this had on referrals. The group received assurance from commissioners that barriers to accessing
health funded placements were being addressed.

e The group received a report on quality improvement work in hospital discharge from Wiltshire Council and
the ICB. The work focused on how discharge to assess processes have improved on their MCA adherence
and whether we are assured that best interests in MCA and decision making is effective within the discharge
to assess process. The group were assured that there is a robust multi-agency quality assurance oversight of
the processes around hospital discharge and discharge to assess.

e Following reviews of the Safeguarding Adults Collection (SAC) return to NHS Digital the group discussed the
impact of COVID on safeguarding referrals. The SAC showed more safeguarding concerns raised this year
than the previous year with an increasing number of cases where the source of risk was a service provider.
The group received assurance that the increase was likely due to the number of hospital discharges to care
homes and the group has identified hospital discharge as a priority area for further scrutiny in its strategic
plan.

In addition, the SASA group has maintained oversight and scrutiny of the system relating to adult safeguarding,

in particular relation to:

e QOversight of the implementation of Integrated Care System (ICS) to ensure that safeguarding was being
considered within the ICS structure. This was an issue raised by the southwest Safeguarding Adults Board
(SAB) Chairs Network. The group requested a response from the Integrated Care Board (ICB) to provide
detail on the new arrangements and assurance that safeguarding was being considered.

e Scrutiny of BSW CCG Primary Care Safeguarding Contract. The group were given details of some of the

common challenges experienced by GP practices and an initiative started last year by the MASH nurse to

look at how many practices were invited to and attended safeguarding meetings. It was identified that just
over 50% of GPs were returning information or attending meeting for safeguarding enquiries. The group
have requested further audits of GP engagement in order to monitor improvements.

Oversight of Implementation of Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) Guidance. The group received readiness

reports from LPS Leads but the guidance implementation date has now moved from April 2022 to an

unspecified date. The group will resume the request for update reports once the new implementation date
is set.

The issue of SAB engagement with prisons was highlighted by the SVPP Chair and has been discussed at the

SAB National Chair Network. The group received a report from the Head of Ongoing Support at Wiltshire

Council outlining operational work with Erlestoke Prison. The group were provided with assurance that the

working relationship between the local authority and the prison is positive and proactive and where

concerns have been raised these have been addressed.

Supporting the safeguarding of under 1s - Parents as Service Users Audit

The Thematic Review of Under 1s Audit Report undertaken by the SVPP highlighted that parents, or those in
parenting roles, who represent a risk to children, are often either in need of or are in receipt of services in
their own right. When that is the case, there is evidence that there is often insufficient linkage between
children’s and adults’ services. To try and understand how organisations in Wiltshire routinely assess the
parenting roles (and wider familial risks) of adults who access services, an online questionnaire was sent to
adult facing agencies. Most agencies confirmed that they routinely ask about family status when working
with new service users. The majority of agencies responding said that they recorded children’s information
within their systems and could provide reports to identify service users who are parents. Learning from this
audit further informs the system wide work to improve safeguarding of under 1s led by the Safeguarding
under 1s group.

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page 23 Page 11 of 13


https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/safeguarding-adults/2020-21

Chapter 6: Impact of multi-agency training

The multi-agency training offer continues to be successful, with consistently high feedback from delegates rating
courses as ‘excellent’ or ‘good’. Over 900 practitioners accessed a SVPP training event in 2021/22. In August 2021 a
new Learning Management System was introduced providing improved access to practitioners to book on courses
and an improved ability to gather and report on feedback on the quality and impact of training.

Practitioner comments:

As a Deputy DSL this course will have a huge
impact upon my confidence when working with
families and children who are experiencing

domestic abuse. (Domestic Abuse) This training has refreshed my knowledge
about Neglect and will support me to
_\/ recognise and react appropriately to
neglect and support families to provide a
This training will have a positive impact upon my work. | have safe emotional and physical environment
gained knowledge of tools which can support working with for their children to thrive in. (Neglect)

young people who may have experienced sexual harm, which
will be beneficial in my practice (Sexualised Behaviour Course)

L

SVPP Safeguarding Week
The SVPP held its first Safeguarding Week in October 2021. The purpose of the week was to raise awareness of
safeguarding, create opportunities to share learning from case reviews, and talk to local practitioners about some of
the changes that have taken place within the partnership over the past year. The week of events aimed to bring
together a wide range of accessible (virtual) learning opportunities with the objective of reaching sectors and
stakeholders that may not traditionally have accessed events through the SVPP. A total of 11 sessions were held and
147 delegates attended. There was underrepresentation from the education sector, but this is likely to be pressure
on staff capacity to attend due to the impact of covid.

Feedback from evaluations surveys told us that 100% of delegates rated the overall quality of the workshops as
‘good’ or ‘excellent’. Comments included:

‘I really enjoyed looking at strengths-based approaches in the making safeguarding personal training’ (Making
Safeguarding Personal)

‘Excellent, great training, well done trainers’
(Managing High Risk).

Another safeguarding week is planned for 2022 where it is hoped there will a wider range of learning opportunities
and improved attendance from a broader range of agencies.

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page 28 Page 12 of 13




Chapter 7: Next steps and priorities for the partnership

Our priorities for 2023-2026 are:

Safeguarding Under 1’s

Domestic Abuse

Transitional safeguarding

Exploitation and Contextual Safeguarding
Social, emotional and mental health

Independent scrutiny is also a priority and will include an independent
review of progress against these in 2023.

In addition we will set out an annual strategic plan for children and adults safeguarding, to include action plan
against each priority by which we can measure progress and impact. This will enable all partners to be clear on the
focus of our work and activity.

Wiltshire Police have been placed into HMICFRS ‘ENGAGE’ status following their National Child Protection Inspection
(NCPI) and 2022 PEEL inspections and the SVPP will work with them to support improvements.

We will also continue to work closely with the Families and Children’s Transformation programme (FACT), including
joint workforce development and supporting the piloting of a Family Help Model.

SVPP Annual Report 2021-2022 Page 39 Page 13 of 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Agenda Iltem 6

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

30 March 2022

Subject: BSW Integrated Care Strategy

Executive Summary

l. BSW Integrated Care System, through its Integrated Care
Partnership, is legally required to publish an Integrated Care
Strategy.

Il. This sets the direction of the system for the next five years, outlining
how the NHS, local authorities, the private sector, voluntary,
community and social enterprise (VCSE) organisations and other
partners can improve integrated working to help people in BSW to
live healthier for longer.

Il. The Strategy is the result of engagement with partners across BSW,
however its publication should be considered the start of an
engagement process with partners and residents. The strategy may
be updated annually and this will have implications for the Health
and Wellbeing Board and the Joint Local Health and Wellbeing
Strategy

Proposal(s)
It is recommended that the Board:
)] Discusses the report, noting its implications

1)) Considers the report’s alignment with the Wiltshire Joint Local Health
and Wellbeing Strategy

Reason for Proposal

The Integrated Care Strategy is due to be published by 31 March 2023.

William Pett
Associate Director of Policy & Strategy
BSW Integrated Care Board

Page 37



Wiltshire Council

Health and Wellbeing Board

30 March 2022

Subject: BSW Integrated Care Strategy

Purpose of Report

1.

To set the direction of the system for the next five years, outlining how the
NHS, local authorities, the private sector, voluntary, community and social
enterprise (VCSE) organisations and other partners can improve
integrated working to help people in BSW to live healthier for longer.

Relevance to the Health and Wellbeing Strategy

2.

The Integrated Care Strategy has been informed by the needs identified in
the Joint Strategic Needs Assessments from BaNES, Swindon and
Wiltshire. It has also drawn on areas of consensus across the three Health
and Wellbeing Strategies.

The Integrated Care Strategy may be updated annually. Relevant Health
and Wellbeing Boards are required to consider revising the joint local
health and wellbeing strategy on receiving a new integrated care strategy).
The integrated care strategy should complement the production of these
local strategies.

Background

3.

All Integrated Care Partnerships are developing a Five Year Integrated
Care Strategy as required by the Health and Care Act that describes how
all partnership members are working together to meet the assessed
health, care and wellbeing needs of the local population. The Strategy will
be updated annually.

There is also a requirement for all ICBs to own and develop a five year
system delivery plan (Joint Forward Plan) setting out how we will
implement the Integrated Care Strategy. The completion date for the
Implementation Plan has now been extended to 30" June 2023 with a
draft being produced at the end of March. This plan will also be updated
annually.

Main Considerations

5.

The Integrated Care Strategy has evolved based on feedback from
partners across BSW. This has included the Wiltshire VCSE Alliance
(including Local Healthwatch), Primary Care Network Clinical Directors
and Managers, the Wiltshire Director of Public Health and Place Director.

Page 38



6. Key changes to previous versions of the document include:

e Significant reduction in content to ensure the Strategy is direct and
concise

e A ‘plain English’ test applied to ensure that the Strategy can be read
and understood and residents (though an Executive Summary and
Easy Read version will also be produced)

e The document to be clearly structured around a stated vision and three
supporting objectives, to be delivered by partners across BSW

Next Steps

7. The Integrated Care Strategy will be published by 31 March 2023.
Alongside the main version of the document, an Executive Summary and
Easy Read version will also be made publicly available as soon as
possible.

8. The Implementation Plan (which will outline how, as a minimum, NHS bodies
will deliver the ambitions of the Strategy) is due to be published by 31
June 2023. The Health and Wellbeing Boards across BSW will be
consulted on this document and it is hoped that its scope will extend to
partners beyond the NHS.

William Pett
Associate Director of Policy & Strategy
BSW Integrated Care Board

Report Authors:

William Pett (Associate Director of Policy & Strategy)
Richard Smale (Executive Director of Strategy and Transformation)

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

Note: Document to be designed before publication

Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and
Wiltshire Integrated Care System (BSW Together)

Fntegrated Care Strategy 2023-2028

Integrated Care Partnership
March 2023
Ver 3.0 (Final)




<

Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

Content Page
1 Welcome to our Integrated Care Strategy 3
2 What is an Integrated Care Strategy? 4-5
§ 3 Our Integrated Care Strategy on a page 6
@
N 4 Our starting point: The current picture across BSW 7-10
5 What do we want to achieve? 11-28
6 What enablers will help us to achieve our vision? 29-30
7 What happens next? 31




Swindon and Wiltshire Together

l Bath and North East Somerset,

1. Welcome to our Integrated Care Strategy

Welcome to the BSW Together Integrated Care Strategy.

This strategy sets out our ambition as partners in health, social care, voluntary and other sectors to support the people of BSW to live happier

and healthier for longer. The content of the strategy has been drawn from many conversations with partners and the public on many different

topics and in many different forums across BSW.

U

Ehe strategy provides a direction of travel covering the whole BSW area and connects with local strategies that are being developed in each of
r three areas of BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire (referred to as ‘Places’). It also builds on the good work already being undertaken within

iadividual services and organisations. In this context, the strategy provides a summary of why we are working together and outlines some of the

specific actions we are already undertaking.

The intention is for the strategy to continue to evolve over the coming years as we hear and learn more from local people and our colleagues
who deliver our services. Crucially, this strategy is not just about serving our residents, it is about working with them as active partners.

The strategy is therefore a first chapter in a much broader story of the work that we as partners within BSW are involved in. | hope you find it
informative and useful in finding out more about our approach. We would welcome your thoughts on how it can be further improved.

Cllr Richard Clewer
Chair of the BSW Integrated Care Partnership



l“ 2. What is an Integrated Care Strategy?

Telling our story

BSW Together is required by law to produce an Integrated Care Strategy. This
sets the direction of the system for the next five years, outlining how the NHS,
local authorities, the private sector, voluntary, community and social enterprise
(VCSE) organisations and other partners can improve integrated working to help
people in BSW to live healthier for longer.

Importantly, therefore, this is a strategy for us all, not just the NHS. We cannot
help BSW residents to improve their health and wellbeing by working in silos
—_He can only do so by working together.

I%s strategy sets out a vision and strategic objectives we will work in partnership
téPachieve. It is not ‘set in stone’ and we intend for the strategy to evolve over the
S\%ning years. Crucially, this document sets out what we hope to achieve and

y, but an Implementation Plan (also known as a Joint Forward Plan) will be
published later this year detailing how partners will deliver it, including key
milestones and deliverables.

This document brings together elements from individual strategies that exist
across our health and care system, including those under the guidance of our local
Health and Wellbeing Boards. It is not intended to duplicate or replace these other
strategies, but to provide a summary of how these different elements align.

It is also informed by the four purposes of integrated care systems, which are to:

* improve outcomes in population health and healthcare

+ tackle inequalities in outcomes, experience and access

» enhance productivity and value for money

* help the NHS support broader social and economic development.

Integrated Care Strategy

The Integrated Care Strategy

has been informed by emerging

priorities outlined in individual
strategies below

-

A

B&NES Joint Local Health

Place-based \

Strategies

and Wellbeing Strategy
Swindon Joint Local
Health and Wellbeing
Strategy
Wiltshire Joint Local
Health and Wellbeing
Strategy

)

Organisational
strategies

These include:

NHS organisations
(e.g. Trust strategies)
Local authorities (e.g.

Local Plans, Air Quality
Strategies)
VCSE organisations
Wider public sector
(e.g. fire and police)
Universities

In future, individual strategies
across BSW will reflect the
ambitions of this Integrated Care

Strategy

~

Thematic Strategies
These include:

Health Inequalities Strategy
Primary Care Strategy
Mental Health and
Wellbeing Strategy
Childrenand Young People
Strategy
Elective Care Strategy
Urgent Care and Flow
Strategy
Acute Services Clinical
Strategy
Maternity Services Strategy

k End of Life Strategy /

Enabling
Strategies

These include:

BSW Green Plan
Financial Sustainability
Strategy
People Strategy
Digital Strategy
Infrastructure Strategy




{{ 2. What is an Integrated Care Strategy?

Who has produced our strategy?

This strategy has been produced by BSW Together’s Integrated Care
Partnership. The Integrated Care Partnership first met in October 2022
and our intention is for this forum to bring together the multiple different
partners working not just across health and local government but also a
range of other stakeholders whose work affects the health and wellbeing
of our residents. This includes those listed on the previous page.

The Integrated Care Partnership’s purpose is to consider long-term health
“Bhd wellbeing challenges in BSW that are complex to solve and require

ined-up approaches between partners. It will propose objectives to
(clude when we update this Integrated Care Strategy in future and
Jnportantly it will also monitor the delivery of the Strategy over time,
hsuring that we are all doing our bit to deliver it.

We want to use the ambition outlined in this strategy to keep us
focussed over the coming years on the things we can only achieve
by working together.

The Integrated Care Partnership holds all its meetings in public. If you
would like to attend any of these meetings, ask any questions or find out
more about the partnership then you can do so through our website at
www.bswtogether.org.uk

Design principles for our strategy

The Integrated Care Partnership has set out to produce a strategy that is:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Bold

Accessible

Commitment-oriented

Broad

Measurable

Locally-driven

The strategy represents an opportunity to set out an ambitious future
for health and care across BSW, with significant benefits to be
reaped through partnership working and prevention

Any resident across BSW should be able to read the strategy and
understand it. We have therefore opted for a visual and digestible
format, written as far as possible in plain English.

This strategy aims to unite partners across BSW behind behaviours
and actions that will help us to achieve our system’s vision.

This strategy is not about taking action on everything at once, but
rather to set key strategic objectives and a direction of travel.

Where possible, we have tried to ensure that the goals and
commitments set out in this document are measurable so that BSW
residents can assess us on our progress over time.

This strategy is not overly prescriptive on what should occur locally
across our three places, which will also set their own priorities.

KIRIRIRIRIA


http://www.bswtogether.org.uk/

>/

‘ 3. Our Integrated Care Strategy on a page

Bath & North East Somerset Swindon Wiltshire
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint
Local Health & Wellbeing Strategy Local Health & Wellbeing Strategy Local Health & Wellbeing Strategy

The BSW Vision:

Listening and working effectively together to improve health and wellbeing and reduce inequalities.

We will deliver this vision by prioritising three clear objectives:
EVhat we L > :
il deliver

o o o o
(0))

Focus on prevention Fairer health and

: ) : Excellent health and
and early intervention wellbeing outcomes

care services

The BSW Care Model

Healthier Communities Personalised Care Joined-up Local Teams > Local Specialist Services Specialist Centres

Enablers to help make it happen

Shifting funding to £ Developing Our Technology & / Estates of the Environmental Our Role as Anchoré
prevention Workforce Data /] Future Sustainability Institutions

How we
will deliver
it




Bath and North East Somerset,
Swindon and Wiltshire Together

<

4. Our starting point: The
current picture across BSW

This section outlines what BSW currently looks like in
terms of demographics, health, wellbeing and
socioeconomic profile.

/v abed

In this section:

4.1 Challenges across BSW
4.2 Our assets
4.3 A system of three places



4.1 Challenges across BSW

Many of the challenges identified in individual

Joint Strategic Needs Assessments are
shared across the whole system. These
include the following:

Q1 °bed

One million adults
and children

Wiltshire

1,500 square
miles

Cities, towns
and rural areas

Inequality

BSW is more affluent than the England average, but there is a highly
unequal distribution of wealth across the system. Deprivation levels are
highest in Swindon and there are significant differences in life expectancy
depending on where you live in BSW. For example:

* A female in Bathavon South — 91 years
» A male in Trowbridge Central — 73 years

The prevalence of many health conditions is higher for those living in less
advantaged communities. Tackling this inequality is a priority for all our
partner organisations.

An ageing population

The age profile of the BSW population is changing and this is going to place
further pressure on health and care services. In Wiltshire alone, the 65+
population currently represents just over a fifth of the population but by 2040
this age group will make up nearly a third of the total population. This will
also have the long-term effect of reducing the proportion of our population
who are working.

The cost of living

In 2022, annual inflation hit a 40 year high, with consumer price inflation at
over 11%. This has placed a significant amount more pressure on our
communities and individuals through the increased cost of living. Higher bills
for heating and food, for example, is likely to have had a detrimental impact
on health and healthy behaviours across BSW, in turn leading to increased
health inequalities.

Access to services

Access to a range of social care, NHS and partner services has been a
challenge for many BSW residents since the Covid pandemic. A recent
report produced by Healthwatch and the CQC, for example, found that many
people living with mental ill health in BSW are unable to access mental
health services. Waiting lists are very long and people have reported feeling
they are ‘getting lost’ in the system.

Our strategy must prioritise improving the accessibility of services for all
local people.

Rurality

BSW, especially across Wiltshire and BaNES, has a high proportion of areas that
are considered rural. There are several challenges that rural areas face,
including around transport and broadband connectivity. In terms of health
services, trusts operating in rural areas tend to treat more older people than in
urban areas. This is partly caused by the migration of young people away from
rural areas. Frailty and complex comorbidities amongst elderly populations
present major challenges to the delivery of care in rural settings — particularly in
isolated, small communities.

Children’s health

While most child health indicators are better than national average, many
children have difficult living circumstances across the system:

- 1in 4 children do not achieve a good level of development at the end of
Reception
- 1in 10 children are living in poverty
- 1in 200 children are in care
- Obesity and mental health problems are increasing

We must put more focus on our children, young people and families, to better
support them in all areas of their lives, including the environment they grow up,
their education, and the support around them.

Housing

The cost of housing in parts of BSW is unaffordable for the local population, with
many employment options in the area offering low wages. In the South West,
housing prices rose sharply during the pandemic and the most deprived parts of
the population have been hit hardest by the rising cost of living. In Wiltshire, for
instance, median house prices increased by 48% from 2011 to 2021, while gross
annual residence-based earnings increased by only 14%. This problem is also
shared in BaNES and Swindon.

There is a severe shortage of social housing across BSW. Over 6,000
households are in housing need and waiting for accommodation in Swindon
alone. Quality of housing also remains a problem across both private and social
housing. We know that cold, damp homes can have a significantly detrimental
impact on occupants’ physical and mental health and wellbeing.



4.2 Our assets

There is much to be proud of across BSW. Achieving our vision and addressing the challenges we face will not be easy, however

we have excellent assets to draw on. These include:

61 abed

Supportive communities

Thousands of people provide unpaid care to
support loved ones and/or give up their time
through a volunteer role. The Voluntary,
Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) sector
makes a huge contribution to the health and
wellbeing of BSW residents.

A history of partnership working

We have been working together since we formed
a sustainability and transformation partnership in
2016. This means that we have a long history of

integrated working.

Collectively, we work towards a vision which
guides our collaboration and inspires the action
needed to make change happen.

Above average health profile

Despite the challenges set out on the previous
page, BSW benefits from having a positive health
profile. On most health indicators, ranging from
life expectancy to infant mortality, our three
places perform better than average for England.
That said, Swindon in particular has high levels of
health inequalities and public health indicators
reflect poorer performance here than England in
some domains.

High quality services

In BSW there are 2,800 Voluntary,
Community and Social Enterprises, three
Local Authorities (including their public health
and social care teams), 88 GP practices, 26
Primary Care Networks, two community
services providers, three acute hospital
trusts, two mental health trusts, an
ambulance trust and an Integrated Care
Board (ICB) overseeing NHS services, as
well as hundreds of partners across the
private sector who help deliver excellent
care.

A diverse and committed workforce

In BSW, we directly employ 37,600
colleagues in health and care services alone,
with many more thousands across the wider
public, VCSE and private sectors.

We have an outstanding health and care
workforce, delivering high quality services.
The majority of these individuals are also
supported by the services we provide.

Education and research

BSW is home to the University of Bath and Bath Spa
University. This gives us an excellent research base
within the system. Independent analysis has shown that
the operational activities of the University of Bath alone
generated £340 million gross value added (GVA) for the
economy of Bath and North East Somerset. There are
also colleges across each of the three places that help
to ensure a skilled and dynamic workforce.

Our NHS providers also play a vital role in research and
we are well prepared to take an increasingly systematic
approach to research across BSW.

Industry and employment

There is a thriving private sector across BSW,
generating growth and jobs across the system. In
recent years the Swindon and Wiltshire LEP alone
estimates that some 30,000 businesses thrive in the
area contributing £21bn GVA annually to the UK
economy. In BaNES, the main commercial and
recreational centre, is Bath. This is a World Heritage
City and is an international tourist destination that
provides a spectacular setting for world-class arts,
culture, and leisure facilities.



4.3 A system of three places

0G abed

Other
selected
challenges
(from Joint
Strategic
Needs
Assessment)

Joint Local
Health &

Wellbeing
Strategy

Objectives

BSW's three places each have their own population health profiles and challenges. Each place is developing their own Joint Local Health and
Wellbeing Strategy for addressing the needs set out in their Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. This strategy is directly informed by the public

engagement and ambitions set out in these documents.

We want to empower each of the below three places to make their own decisions about services for their local populations. This strategy sets out
priorities for all BSW partners, yet how each place delivers on these priorities may differ and is largely outside the scope of this strategy.

Bath & North East Somerset
Population m 193,400

Life expectancy

Male: 80.3 years [England 79.0 years]
Female: 84.8 years [England 82.9 years]

Healthy life expectancy

Male: 66 years
Female: 66 years

Source: Strateqgic Evidence Base for Bath & North East Somerset

Swindon

. 0000
Population m 222,881

Life expectancy

Male: 79.1 [England 79.0 years]
Female: 83.1 [England 82.9 years]

Healthy life expectancy

Male: 61.4 years
Female: 62.2 years

Source: Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (2022)

Wiltshire

5 0000
Population m 510,400

Life expectancy

Male: 80.9 years [England 79.0 years]
Female: 84.5 years [England 82.9 years]

Healthy life expectancy

Male: 66 years
Female: 65.2 years

Source: Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (2022)

Effects of increased cost of living. Estimates suggest 4,000 people
(of whom 1,500 are children) will have fallen into absolute poverty in
2022/23.

Mental health & special educational needs and disability (SEND).
BaNES has a significantly higher rate of hospital admissions (19.4 per
100,000 population) due to eating disorders than the national average
(12.1). The number of Special School places available in B&NES has
not matched increasing demand.

Readiness for education. There is a 28% attainment gap between
children eligible for Free School Meals (FSM) and those not
known to be eligible for FSM at Early Years Foundation Stage.

Deprivation. Swindon is ranked as the 98th most deprived area
out of 151 Upper Tier Local Authorities (UTLAS) in England but

some smaller areas are in the 10% most deprived in the country.

Mental health. Admissions to hospital for self-harm across all
ages is significantly higher than the average for the south west
and England as a whole. The picture is particularly troubling in
relation to children.

Healthy life expectancy. Males in Swindon will spend 80% of
their lives in good health, but for females it is only 74%.

Mental health. In 2020/21, 44,000 people (18 and over) had a
diagnosis of depression, equivalent to 11% of the population.
Rates of hospital admissions for self-harm are at their highest
level for five years.

Age-related conditions. By 2030, it is estimated that almost
11,500 people aged 65 and above will be living with dementia.

Education: In Wiltshire, regarding attainment, those eligible for
free school meals achieve much lower than other areas across a
range of tests.

1. Ensure that children and young people are healthy and ready
for learning and education

2. Improve skills, good work and employment

3. Strengthen compassionate and healthy communities

4. Creating health promoting places

1. Improve mental health and wellbeing
2. Eatwell and move more
3. Stop Smoking and Reduce Alcohol

Improve social mobility and tackling inequalities
Prevention and early intervention

Localisation and connecting with communities
Integration and working together

PR



https://beta.bathnes.gov.uk/sites/default/files/jsna/Strategic%20Evidence%20Base%20Main%20Doc%20Published%2020220630_0.pdf
https://www.swindonjsna.co.uk/Files/Files/All%20JSNAs%2028_06_22_FINAL_v8.pdf
https://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/jsna/

TG obed

Swindon and Wiltshire Together

l Bath and North East Somerset,

5. What do we want to achieve?

This section outlines our vision in more detail. It also explains what delivering our
strategic objectives will mean for residents. While we outline in broad terms our
approach to achieving each objective, the role of partners in reaching our goals will
be set out in more detail in the BSW Implementation Plan.

In this section:

5.1 What we have heard

5.2 Explaining our vision

5.3 What achieving our vision will look like

5.4 Strategic Objective 1: Focus on prevention and early intervention
5.5 Strategic Objective 2: Fairer health outcomes

5.6 Strategic Objective 3: Excellent health and care services



5.1 What we have heard

How have we engaged with organisations and residents

Phase One: Resident and community information gathering on health, care and wellbeing.
Each of our three places (BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire) has engaged directly with the public to
inform the development of their joint health and wellbeing strategies. Residents and people working
in BaNES, for example, were able to complete an online survey during a public consultation period
to provide views on what mattered to them. Insights from this, as well as the public engagement
processes adopted by Swindon and Wiltshire have been used throughout this strategy.

We have also benefited from the input and research of organisations working directly with residents.
Again, for example, Healthwatch recently conducted research with the CQC into access to mental
alth services in BSW and this helped to establish why and how we must aim to improve access
gerough this strategy. In Swindon, input from partners through the Swindon Carers Rights Day and
%CSE Conference in late 2022 have been invaluable.

PBhase Two: Stakeholder engagement. In December 2022, BSW held an Integrated Care Strategy
event, which was attended by over 60 stakeholders across the health, care, wider public sector and
voluntary sectors. Such organisations included NHS organisations, local authorities, VCSE
organisations and Healthwatch, representing citizens and communities.

Between January and March, we also held dedicated engagement events with the VCSE Alliances
of Bath & North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire, as well as with other partners such as those
in local government and primary care.

Phase Three: Publication and beyond. This strategy was published on xx further to the input,
review and approval of the members of the Integrated Care Partnership during February and March
2023.

Importantly, we want to engage further with organisations and residents. The publication of this

strategy does not represent the end of its development. The strategy will evolve over the coming
years as the health and care landscape changes. We are able to update the strategy each year and
the final page of this document provides details of how you can get in touch with us to tell us your
thoughts.

Some messages from the population of BSW

We must focus on

We need ongoing engagement with residents prevention

“[It should be] a bottom up strategy — thinking about

need of the individual before the restrictions of the ‘[Success will mean]

Treating cause before

system.”
symptom.”

We must be more
responsive to our
residents’ needs

We need to make it easier to
understand services

“The strategy] should
meet the needs of the

“[Success will mean] | won'’t have
to spend an inordinate amount of
time and energy finding out what
services are available to help me
care for my disabled grandson.”

people on the street.”

We must ensure closer
working between
organisations whose work
affects health and wellbeing

We need to deliver support

“[Success will mean] All partners 57 SR, WS (957 € EEne

working together with the same goal,

clear communications with clients.” [Success will mean] | wont

have to beg for help.”




{{ 5.2 Explaining our vision

The BSW. Vision

Listening and working effectively together|to improve health and wellbeing and reduce inequalities

Listening together

Partners across our Integrated Care Partnership are united in
a belief that our future must be based on meaningful,
ongoing engagement with local people. We want to
ensure that residents are given opportunities to shape the
plans, decisions, and public services that affect their lives, and
believe that this can lead to positive outcomes for the
communities we serve. Importantly, residents are partners in
our s_éstem —we plan with them, not do to them.

We& clear, therefore, that this strategy represents the
starfPnot the end, of a journey with our residents. It will
contidlie to evolve over the coming years and at the end of
this &ument we invite views on whether the vision and
objectives outlined in this document are the right ones for you.

Working together

Our vision is for health and care organisations to work more
effectively in partnership. This will be crucial to creating
communities and environments that help people to live
healthier for longer.

However, we know that people are living longer with multiple,
complex, long-term conditions, requiring long-term support
from several different services. We have heard our residents
have often received fragmented care for such conditions and
that are not effectively co-ordinated around their needs. We
will therefore deliver joined-up support across our health
and care services that better meets the needs of the
population.

Improving health and wellbeing

To make a significant difference in the health and wellbeing of the people of BSW, partners are agreed that we must focus on
those things that impact most on health outcomes. These include the following four ‘pillars of population’ health, as identified
by The King’s Fund:

1. Thewider determinants of health — the range of social factors
such as income, education and employment which collectively
are the most important driver for health.

2. Health behaviours and lifestyles — covering behaviours such
as smoking, alcohol consumption, diet and exercise which are
the second most important driver.

3.  The healthcare we receive — including whether we are able to
access services and receive high-quality care.

4.  Our environment — the extent to which the environment we live
in helps to support better health and wellbeing, for example
through good air quality and green spaces,
or hinder it

The wider Our health
determinants behaviours and
of health lifestyles

An integrated The places and
health and communities
care system we live in,
and with

Reducing inequalities

This strategy highlights that there are unfair and avoidable differences in health and wellbeing across our population,
and between different groups within society. Often these differences stem from the ‘wider determinants of health’ highlighted
above. Residents who live in more deprived areas, for example, have worse health and wellbeing outcomes and, as
highlighted on page 8, there are big differences in life expectancy across BSW matching levels of deprivation. However, other
factors influence health and wellbeing too — we highlight that those in rural areas, for example, often have worse access in
terms of distance to health, public health and care services.

We therefore intend to put reducing inequalities at the heart of everything we do. The Integrated Care Partnership will
bring together partners with the common ambition of ensuring that everyone, regardless of who they are and where they live
in BSW, is able to live a long, healthy and happy life.



5.3 What achieving our vision will look like

— Stage of life What our residents can expect

Healthy
pregnancy, . Mothers have a healthy pregnancy and good birth experience
birth and . Babies are born in good health
neonatal . Parents approach parenting with confidence
care

i

Children, young people and families have a healthy environment in which they can grow up in

Th? I.BSW Mental health support is available for children and young people who need it
V'_S'On The most vulnerable children and young people are well-supported, including those in and leaving
Working and Start well care, as well as those who need to be kept safe
IiS@ﬁing 0-25 years Children are ready to start education
effetively There are better links between health and care services and schools
together to
. —
Improve Individuals are supported to look after their own health and wellbeing
health and Live well All residents benefit from living and working in places that promote health and wellbeing
wellbeing 25_64 vears Those with physical disabilities, learning disabilities and mental health conditions are in good health.
and reduce y Their care and support includes access to opportunities such as accommodation, housing and
. . employment.
inequalities. Dy
Age well Older people feel that they are happy, healthy, independent and in control of their own care
+64 years The health and wellbeing of carers is prioritised and supported
When needed, health and care services are delivered at home, or as close to home as possible
Individuals are consulted on where they would like their life to end and how they would like to be
cared for in the final months of their life
Individuals feel that their wishes are respected by staff and those around them
~— Comprehensive support services are provided for individuals and their loved ones through palliative

care, including bereavement support for families




\

5.4 OBJECTIVE 1:

Focus on prevention and early intervention

Why is this our objective?

Ouir first objective reflects our shared commitment to
ensuring people are able to stay healthier for longer.
It unites all partners across BSW and is a key part of
our rationale for wanting to work together.

=0 is our first objective because the most effective

&vay to improve healthy life expectancy is to
M®reate the right conditions, communities and

nvironments for people to remain healthy,

regardless of where they live in BSW. This will
help to ensure individuals are able to live
independently and are less reliant on health and
care services. Our Integrated Care Partnership
will hold the partners within the system to
account on whether we are putting prevention of
ill-health at the heart of everything we do.

Health and social care represents an important
driver to improve health and wellbeing, but this
strategy seeks to encompass the broader role of
prevention and the wider determinants of health. To
support progress on this, BSW will also include
action that takes a broader view of prevention.

Areas of focus

* Focusing funding and resources on prevention rather than treatment: Working together as a
system, we want to try and invest more funding and resources on services and infrastructure that
will help people from becoming unwell.

* Primary prevention: This means taking action to reduce the incidence of disease and health
problems within the population, either through universal measures that reduce lifestyle risks and
their causes or by targeting high-risk groups.

« Secondary prevention: This means systematically detecting the early stages of disease and
intervening before full symptoms develop — for example, prescribing statins to reduce cholesterol
and taking measures to reduce high blood pressure.

« Tertiary prevention: This means softening the impact of an ongoing illness or injury that has lasting
effects. This is done by helping people manage long-term, often-complex health problems and
injuries (e.g. chronic diseases, permanent impairments) in order to improve as much as possible
their ability to function, their quality of life and their life expectancy.

* Wider determinants of health: These are the social, economic or environmental factors affecting
health, such as housing, employment, education, or parks and green spaces.

Definitions of prevention, adapted from: Prevention | Local Government Association



https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/our-improvement-offer/care-and-health-improvement/integration-and-better-care-fund/better-care-fund/integration-resource-library/prevention?msclkid=e2652a4ab1cf11ecb683a778be3c4d2f

\

The opportunity:

To improve the health and wellbeing of
our residents, especially those living
with disadvantages, we must seize the
opportunity to focus our funding on
activities that help to prevent people
falling into ill health and wellbeing to
begin with.

There is a saying that ‘an ounce of
pre@ntion is worth a pound of cure’
angdwve will put this at the heart of our
eff@pts over the coming years.

o1
Ma&RIng progress on achieving a
shift in funding towards
prevention and away from
treatment is one of our key long
term priorities in BSW.

Over time, this will mean less spent on
the treatment of illness in acute settings
such as hospitals and through care
services.

We will need to work together as a
system to achieve this and our ICP will
hold partners to account on our
progress towards this goal over the
coming years.

1‘ 5.4.1 Focusing funding and resources on prevention
rather than treatment

Our approach:

Our system ambition is to achieve what is called ‘The
Triple Aim’. This comprises:

1. Better health and wellbeing
2. Better quality of care
3. Financially sustainable and efficient services

Our approach will build on a commitment that has
been set out nationally (in the 2019 national NHS
Long Term Plan) to increase investment in primary
medical and community health services as a share of
the total revenue spend.

We are aware of the significant pressures facing all
health and care services at present. Importantly,
achieving a funding shift towards prevention will not
involve taking money away from any health and care
services. Rather, it will involve prioritising future
funding increases towards community and
primary care and self-care and over time, achieving
a shift in the overall balance of funding towards
prevention.

‘Community care’ includes services delivered across
BSW by the voluntary sector.

OBJECTIVE 1:

Focus on prevention and early intervention

Our commitments include:

v" Partners across the ICP will work together to identify an accurate picture
of funding and resourcing across BSW when it comes to self-care,
community care and hospital care

v" We will aim to increase the share of health and care funding going
towards preventative measures (self-care and community care) over the
next five years. Our ICP will monitor over time the degree to which this
balance is shifting

A crude visualisation of this is provided below.

Community
& Primary Hospital
Care

_ Shift of care and provision

Hospital

Where we are

Community &
Primary Care

Self
Care


https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/

{{ 5.4.2 Primary prevention

The opportunity:

Many (but not all) health conditions, both physical and mental, are preventable. Health and
wellbeing can be both positively and adversely affected by whether an individual engages in health
promoting activity. Exercise, for example, is key to maintaining good cardiovascular health.
However, some individuals have far greater opportunity than others to do more activity that
improves their health and wellbeing. We therefore want to work together to create health
promoting places, ensuring that all residents regardless of background have the right conditions
and incentives to stay healthier for longer.

Through a focus on primary prevention we aim to help individuals to prevent disease, injury or ill-
health before it occurs. This is done by preventing exposures to hazards that cause disease or
intgyy, helping people to avoid unhealthy or unsafe behaviours that can lead to disease or injury,
ag increasing resistance to disease or injury.

P&sical and mental wellbeing
\l
Our approach:

Our approach across BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire is focused on how individuals can manage
their own health and wellbeing and draw upon the wide range of support available within their
local community to help them do so.

This includes a focus on reducing obesity by creating opportunities for BSW residents to maintain
their health through higher levels of physical activity.

Our commitments include:

v" We will increase the proportion of physically active adults

v We will improve Personal Wellbeing ONS4 scores (Life Satisfaction, Worthwhile, Happiness,
Anxiety)

v" We will reduce the proportion of adults considered overweight or obese

v" We will increase proportion of children who are healthy weight at reception age

v" We will reduce the prevalence of mental health conditions

OBJECTIVE 1:

Focus on prevention and early intervention

In BaNES, an Active Travel Social Prescribing Hub will actively encourage improved
levels of physical activity. This will support improved physical and mental health and
reduce the prevalence of future conditions. This is supported by developing the
transport environment to support efficient and safe travel by cycling or walking.

In Swindon, The Move More Programme is supporting local people to become more
active through a range of support and interventions.

In Wiltshire, ‘This Girl Can’ classes recently launched across Wiltshire council leisure
centres. During the classes women are introduced to a variety of different group
exercise styles, each with different moves and skills to try. These include dance fitness,
box fithess, yoga-inspired stretch and interval training.



<

5.4.2 Primary prevention (continued)

Smoking
The opportunity:

Smoking rates vary slightly between BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire and there are significant
variations within each of these areas. However, the overall BSW smoking rate is similar to the
national average.

Smoking is the single largest avoidable cause of death and social inequalities in terms of life
expectancy in the UK. Lung cancer is the most common cause of cancer death in BSW,
Ithough lung cancer mortality rates are lower than the national average. We have an
Qepportunity to improve health and wellbeing by ensuring that, as far as possible, the future
(-(_QDor BSW is smoke-free.

%ur approach:

Smoking is an ongoing concern in BSW, with each of our three places running their own
programmes to stop smoking. One area of focus is people admitted to our hospitals, which
provides an opportunity to simultaneously address health inequalities, reduce hospital re-
admissions, help local people stay well and save money across our health and care services.

Our plans to treat tobacco dependency have been developed by a BSW Partnership working
group which contains representatives from all local NHS Trusts, community providers and
Public Health teams.

Our commitments include:

v" We will further reduce the proportion of people in BSW who smoke

v" To so we will expand stop smoking services across partners, recognising the opportunities
that points of interaction with services offer on prevention. A current example of this is the
Treating Tobacco Dependency service.

OBJECTIVE 1:

Focus on prevention and early intervention

5.4.3 Secondary prevention

The opportunity:

While we will focus on primary prevention to keep people healthier and happier, we also have
an opportunity to ensure we detect ill-health as soon as possible. A focus on secondary
prevention will be key for detecting and treating disease prior to the appearance of any
symptoms.

Our approach:

We are already working to ensure that signs of ill-health are detected as soon as possible.
We undertake cancer screening and identify patients who smoke or drink alcohol with impacts
on their condition. We try to detect as early as possible people with hypertension, signs of
diabetes, atrial fibrillation and other conditions. We are, for example, sending text messages
to certain patients who have not had a blood pressure check in over 18 months inviting them
to do so using a machine located in the community.

Diagnosing ill-health as early as possible is best for patients and best for BSW’s
financial sustainability. By increasing the proportion of individuals with hypertension treated
to 80%, over a three year period in BSW it is estimated we could prevent 89 heart attacks and
139 strokes and save around £2.5 million.

Our commitments include:

v" We will work to ensure the system has routine access to high quality secondary prevention
data

v" We will bring together BSW partners to work on joined-up prevention pathways. On
cardiovascular disease prevention, for example, we will support primary care partners to
increase home blood pressure monitoring activity and work with community pharmacy to
roll out a Hypertension Case Finding Service

v" We will improve uptake of cervical, breast and bowel cancer screening



OBJECTIVE 1:

544 'I;ertiary prevention Focus on prevention and early intervention

The opportunity:

Over time, and with an ageing population, some of our residents will develop
long-term conditions. We have an opportunity to work with them more
effectively to ensure that they stay as healthy as possible and do not develop
further complications.

(Our Population Health Management tool flags Marvin for a \
review by identifying he is at risk of worsening health. The Care
Coordination Team contact Marvin and encourage him to

attend to see his GP.

Our approach:

We will provide comprehensive support to our residents who have an ongoing

iliness or injury that has lasting effects to help prevent their situation worsening. Marvin \ -(Ij—Z\e/e?cf a;%;irliliﬁﬁrzc:tnsal;iitznhizevigkwgr:g g:\:}ilMﬁfr:\e/igot?hc;:-
On the right you can see the kind of approach we will take to ensure that Type 52, Warehouse Night Manager he can zelf-monitor his diabetes and control its imgact.
2 diabetes progression is slowed and managed effectively. \ )

Marvin is a night shift worker in a warehouse, who
values the time outside of work he can spend with
his family. He has poorly managed Type 2

(@) . diabetes and has been recently been diagnosed
Caredfor long term conditions with COPD. He has a poor diet and is distrusting

(@] ] Qf health professionals so avoids visiting his GP. ) ( \

WitkQn ageing population the prevalence of conditions like mental iliness, Marvin speaks to his employer about his Care Plan and how they can

Our 8ommitment:

cardiovascular disease, respiratory disease and diabetes is increasing across work together to ensure his health is prioritised and maintained. Marvin
BSW. is able to access the Community Hub out of hours to suit his shifts.
We are working with our specialists in these conditions to connect them with I\/_Iarvml is able tofacces_s d|abet|hcs| groukp S‘;]pport S_eShS'Ol_rf‘S and 1:1
the emerging joined up local teams in each neighbourhood in order to provide / \ \S/Lrétlaéilnzglzpmt rom his GP to help make changes in his life
coordinated lifestyle, psychological and medical advice and support. Marvin uses remote monitoring and the data he ' )
records is reviewed by a Diabetes Nurse in
Through our specialist services, local authorities, VCSE organisations and primary care. Marvin and the Diabetes Team can
neighbourhood teams working together, we will prevent, break or slow the both initiate virtual appointments if they have
chain of progression that results in poorer outcomes for our population and concerns. The local team can access specialist
increased costs and pressure for the health and care system. input if required. f \
Marvin is able to better control his diabetes through
In the event of an acute COPD episode, Marvin self monitoring and diet. This has enabled him to
can be seen by a Respiratory Nurse Specialist stay well and out of the hospital. In BSW he lives in a
in his local community assessment and health promoting environment where is able to
treatment unit without having to go to hospital. access a local gym out of hours and is able to lead an

\Ifrequired, he can be admitted to a virtual ward/ active lifestyle.




5.4.5__ The wider determinants

The opportunity:

There is now a wealth of research that demonstrates the intrinsic
link between the community and environment we live in and
our health and wellbeing.

How our communities shape our health and wellbeing in BSW has
been revealed through our local authorities’ Joint Strategic Needs
Assessments. For example, the state of housing has a significant
impact on both mental and physical health and the inequalities that
exist within BSW. Improving the quality of housing across BSW is a
priority for local authority and housing association partners and will
have benefits in the health of local people.

Throqgh our integrated care system, we have the opportunity to take
co-ddinated action across NHS organisations, local authorities, the
emermency services, VCSE organisations, education providers, the
private sector and others to address the wider determinants of
healgyfor people across BSW. Again, this is part of our shared
commitment to creating health promoting places.

Each local authority in BSW is taking
action to improve air quality. In
Wiltshire, for example, their strategy
is clear that improving local air
quality requires changes to be made
by everyone. Working collaboratively
with communities, local authorities
are seeking to maintain good air
quality and work to deliver
improvements in areas where air
guality fails national objectives in
order to protect public health and the
environment.

Air Quality Strategy
for Wiltshire

2019-2024

Our approach:

Supporting the development of healthier communities encompasses a range of interventions by
partners. These include (but are not limited to):

Improve skills, good work and employment

Increased employment prospects and skill development can have a direct impact on people’s health
and wellbeing. Workplaces therefore have a critical role in supporting the physical and mental health
of their employees. Our ICP will work to ensure that good employment across sectors remains a key
priority across partners.

Housing

We will bring together partners to plan how we can ensure both that housing helps to improve, not
worsen, people’s health and wellbeing and that it is available to all.

Transport

We will work to promote cleaner forms of transport across BSW to improve air quality, support
access to education and employment, and promote exercise.

Ensuring safe communities

We will work in partnership with the police and with communities to help prevent and reduce violence
and offer holistic support to those affected by violence, with a focus on trauma, resilience, early
intervention and education.

Our commitments include:
In BSW, we will work together to create health promoting places, including action to:

Increase green space, accessible for all to use, and promote greener transport

Improve air quality, including by incentivising greener forms of travel

Keep all of our residents in warm and decent homes, through investment in our social housing
stock and both supportive and enforcement interventions in private sector homes

v' Prevent homelessness by engaging with vulnerable individuals at the earliest possible stage
v/ Prioritise social housing to those in greatest need to support their health and social care needs

KX

Good work

— ®

Our surroundings ﬁ&

Money and =
resources
Housing ﬁ

skills

Education and

The food we eat

Transport

¥

Families, friends 22°°

and communities

VAV IAVIAVV VIV A




T9 abed

5.5 OBJECTIVE 2:

Fairer health and wellbeing outcomes

Why is this our objective?

Health inequalities develop due to variations in the conditions in
which we are born, grow, live, work and age; this means that not
everyone has the same opportunities to be healthy. As part of our
commitment to deliver fairer health outcomes we will reduce

health inequalities across BSW. Health Inequalities are defined as Areas of focus

the systematic differences in health between groups of people. )

Differences in life expectancy, and health life expectancy, are one of * Adopting CORE20PLUSS . -
the key measures of health inequality. » A system-wide focus on reducing health inequalities

It is time we took action to address such inequalities in BSW. There
is evidence that for too long, the provision of health and care
services has followed the ‘inverse care law’. This describes how —
perversely — people who most need health and care are the least
likely to receive it.

A new approach to provision of services is needed to ensure that the
services offered across BSW are delivered proportionately on the
basis of need, with a scale and intensity that is proportionate to the
level of disadvantage.



5.5.1 Adopting CORE20PLUS5
|

Our approach:

Core20PLUSS is a national NHS England approach to inform action to reduce healthcare
inequalities at both national and system level. The approach defines a target population — the
‘Core20PLUS’ — and identifies ‘5’ focus clinical areas requiring accelerated improvement. The
approach, which initially focussed on healthcare inequalities experienced by adults, has now
been adapted to apply to children and young people.

Core20

The most deprived 20% of the national population as identified by the national Index of Multiple
Deprivation (IMD). The IMD has seven domains with indicators accounting for a wide range of
social determinants of health.

PLUS

Local population groups experiencing poorer than average health access, experience and/or
outc s, but not captured in the ‘Core20’ alone. In BSW, the ‘PLUS’ population is defined at
plac ing public health data to determine which population groups were experiencing the
worgRealth outcomes in addition to the ‘Core20’. For BSW these are:

. B&ES: Socially excluded groups, migrants, vulnerable children, rural communities

+ S don: People from ethnic minority backgrounds

» Wiltshire: Routine and manual workers (specifically those in minority groups) and Gypsy,
Roma and boater communities

i5!
The final part sets out five clinical areas of focus:
Adults
1. Maternity Children and Young People
2. Severe mental iliness (SMI) 1. Asthma
3. Chronic respiratory disease 2. Diabetes
4. Early cancer diagnosis 3. Epilepsy
5. Hypertension case-finding and 4. Oral health
optimal management and lipid 5. Mental health

optimal management

Our commitment is to implement a CORE20PLUS5 approach across BSW, as outlined in our
Inequalities Strategy

G

CORE20

The most deprived 20% of
the national population as
identified by the Index of
Multiple Deprivation

REDUCING HEALTHCARE INEQUALITIES

The Core20PLUSS5 approach is designed to support Integrated Care Systems to

Target population

CHRONIC RESPIRATORY
DISEASE
a clear focus on Chronic

Obstructive Pulmonary
Disease (COPD), driving up
uptake of Covid, Flu and
Pneumonia vaccines to
reduce infective
exacerbations and emergency
hospital admissions due to
those exacerbations

drive targeted action in healthcare inequalities improvement

EARLY CANCER
DIAGNOSIS

75% of cases
diagnosed at stage 1
or 2 by 2028

CORE20 PLUS 5

Key clinical areas of health inequalities

REDUCING HEALTHCARE INEQUALITIES
FOR CH'LDREN "ND YOU''G PEOP' E

MATERNITY SEVERE MENTAL
ensuring continuity ILLNESS (SMI)
of care for women ensuring annual health
from Black, Asian checks for 60% of those
and minority ethnic living with SMI (bringing
communities and SMI in line with the success
from the most seen in Learning Disabilities)
deprived groups

The most deprived 20% of

the national population as
identified by the Index of

Multiple Deprivation

( #
£

=

d

:

DIABETES

o

EPILEPSY
Increase access 1o

e epllepsy specialist nurses
and ensure access in the

first year of care for

those with a leaming
disability or autism

The Core20PLUSS5 approach is designed to support Integrated Care
Systems to drive targeted action in healthcare inequalities improvement

Target population

CORE20 PLUS 5

Key clinical areas of health inequalities

O PLUS

ICS-chosen population groups
experiencing poorer-than-average
health access, experience and/or
outcomes, who may not be captured
within the Core20 alone and would
benefit from a tailored healthcare
approach e.g. inclusion health groups

it it

it it

................. i SMOKING

i CESSATION :

HYPERTENSION § posttivelyimpacs. ¢
CASE-FINDING sl ey oo
“ and optimal $ §

management and lipid
optimal management

PLUS

1CS-chosen population groups
experiencing poorer-than-average
health access, experience and/or
outcomes, who may not be captured
within the Core20 alone and would
benefit from a tailored healthcare
approach e.g. inclusion health groups

5

ORAL HEALTH
Address the backlog
for tooth extractions in
haspital for under 10s

o

MENTAL HEALTH
Improve access rates to
* children and young
‘A peaple’s mental health

o
services for 0-17 year olds,
for certain ethnic groups,
age, gender and
deprivation



{‘ 5.5.2 A system-wide focus on reducing
health inequalities

The opportunity:

As highlighted, health inequalities across the BSW population arise because of the conditions
in which we are born, grow, live, work and age. These conditions influence our opportunities
for good health, and how we think, feel and act, and this shapes our mental health, physical
health, and wellbeing. Health inequalities have been documented between population groups
across at least four dimensions, as illustrated on the right, with evidence that the Covid-19
pandemic has exacerbated existing health inequalities.

We have the opportunity to put addressing these inequalities at the heart of the way we
work.

Ougpproach:
(@)

WeBlan to work in partnership to tackle inequalities across the life course to ensure that every
resgent can live longer, healthier, happier lives. Our dedicated Learning Disability & Autism
programme is focused on ensuring that those with a learning disability, autism or both can live
in the community with the right support. Our Inequalities Strategy also sets out how we will
prioritise tackling inequalities, including the commitments set out below.

Our commitments include:

v" We will embed inequality as “everybody’s business” across the system

v We will develop an inequalities ‘hub’ within BSW Academy to host learning and
development resources.

v' Work with commissioners and service providers to ensure robust and up-to-date data
across the system on where inequalities are, and set out clear plans on how close the
inequality gaps

v/ Demonstrate action on inequalities that spans from system to place through joined up
strategy and planning

OBJECTIVE 2:

Fairer health and wellbeing outcomes

Socioeconomic groups
and Deprivation

e.g. unemployed, low
income, deprived areas

)

Inclusion healthand - Protected characteristics

Z in the Equality Duty
vulnerable groups | % Race to be
e.g. homeless people, | eg age, sex, religion,  544eq here
Gypsy, Roma and sexual orientation,
Travellers, sex workers, disabi|i§y, pregnancy and
vulnerable migrants, : st

people who leave prison

Geography

e.g. urban, rural

Taken from: Health Equity Assessment Tool (HEAT): executive summary - GOV.UK
(www.gov.uk)



{{ 5.6 OBJECTIVE 3:

Excellent health and care services

Why is this our objective?

By focusing on prevention (Objective 1), our goal is to help stop as many people as
possible from needing to access health and care services. However, we also want to
ensure that when people do require such services they receive excellent care.

BSW Integrated Care Partnership is proud of the high-quality health and care
services we have across our system. We have a record of excellence; aiming to
giver timely, safe and effective interventions for our residents. We have also had

sitive rates of patient and service user satisfaction. In primary care, for example, a
D22 survey found that 85 per cent of BSW patients said their overall experience was
@d, which was above the national average of 82 per cent.

However, there is much more we can do as a system to improve the health and care
services that serve our population. Working as a system presents us with a unique
opportunity to wrap services around the individual and deliver care as close to their
home as possible. Over the coming years we will strive to deliver the ‘Triple Aim’ in
how we provide services: better health and wellbeing, better quality of care, and
financially sustainable and efficient services.

Areas of focus

* Personalised care

» Joined-up local teams

* Responsive local specialist services
* High quality specialist centres

* Mental health and parity of esteem

This objective builds on the BSW Care Model. The components of this model
feature across different strategic objectives and are key to delivering the vision
and goals of our Integrated Care Strategy.

[ Working together to empower people to lead their best life ]

Startingwell - Livingwell -  Ageing well

Ay, e

%, “onalised =22 s ~

s f/’)‘//f.}j .G <~ 5
ties JONY S '

Public engagement

The BSW Care Model was developed through engagement with a wide range of
partners. During the engagement period 1,441 people were engaged with at 65
events. In addition, 918 people completed a survey. 40 people were spoken to
directly about their experiences of health inequalities. These included refugees
and asylum seekers, people with learning disabilities and autism, members of the
LGBTQ+ community, people with chronic long term conditions, an unpaid carer
and people recovering from alcohol and substance misuse. It was also informed
by the development of health and care systems in the UK and internationally.



https://bsw.icb.nhs.uk/gps-hope-to-maintain-positive-patient-experience-alongside-new-ways-of-working/

5.6.1 Personalised care OBJECTIVE 3:
Excellent health and care services

The opportunity:

Health and social care services deliver better outcomes for individuals when they feel that they feel What will this feel like for
they have the ability, tools and confidence to manage their own health and wellbeing. Personalised . "
care is based on ‘what matters’ to people and their individual strengths and needs. In BSW, we have residents

put it at the heart of our Care Model and we will apply it to everything that we do in the future. '

Our approach:

Being asked
Palg win ks What's The Being asked =
By focussing on personalised care we will support local people at three levels: wiﬁnasp (:vtlefgtns matter ‘What matters Not having the information
or sepomge Lgndiﬁons with you to you? and suppor t you need fo make
. Whole-population - to support people of all ages and their carers to manage their physical and that need treating. S '"f°g"';g:':::‘f;';;'l?sﬁ's‘f“"9 -
mental health and wellbeing, build community resilience, and make informed decisions and o )

choices when their health changes
. A proactive and universal offer of support to people with long-term physical and mental health P
conditions Being 70! what is wrong

q A= A d with you and how your Being valued as an
. Intensive ar}d joined up approaches to empowering people with more complex needs to have Sk erh i
greater choice and control over the care they receive. will be met. in conversations and
-U Being seen decisions about your
Our C@ mitments include: as awhole pealth and ey Having the informafi?n and support
. person you need to make m(ormed
with skills, choices and decisions.

@D
We wilbi?liver a personalised care approach by implementing six, evidence-based approaches:

ot Personalised Care: A shift in relationship

o1 L. i . - as well as needs
1. Shared decision making to ensure that individuals are supported to make decisions that are fo be met. SO eveVUOV\e WOVkS fogeﬂ/\elf
right for them. It is a collaborative process through which a clinician supports a patient to reach R

decisions about treatment. Working in partnership with
health and care practitioners
and sharing Power

2. Personalised care and support planning to ensure facilitated conversations take place in
which the person, or those who know them well, actively participates to explore the management
of their health and well-being within the context of their whole life and family situation.

A ‘One-size-fits-all
approach fo meeting your

Feeling pOWEr 1255 against a
complex health and care system. health and wellbeing needs.  SHIFTS T0..
3. Enabling choice, including legal rights to choice
Health and care professionals
. L . L believing they have all
4. Social prescribing and community based support to ensure individuals are supported to the knowledge, expertise
access the widest range of support and services available in their community. bl sl e d o
. . . SHIFTS TO...
5. Supported self manag.e.ment to ensure people are helped to manage their ongoing physical — e
fou and your neai nd care s z
and mental health conditions themselves. rofecsions Sharing nowledige. Having more choice and
expertise and responsibility for Hivig o tel oo sfory Only needing to tell ﬁ&nfrol ZO your hialgl a;\'d |
. o 5 ing. eliveing neeas are met ertectivel
6.  Personal health budgets and integrated personal budgets to give flexibility on how people’s your heckth an welbsing again and again. your story ONCE. et et pokas Shnit o

assessed health and wellbeing needs are met.

Source: NHS South West



https://www.england.nhs.uk/south/our-work/integrated-personalised-care/embedding-integrated-personalised-care/

< 5.6.2 Joined up local teams

The opportunity:

Health and care services for people in BSW, and across England,
have often felt fragmented for those using them. This has meant,
for example, lots of travelling for individuals for different aspects of their
care and having to ‘tell their story’ multiple times.

We therefore want to implement local multidisciplinary teams (MDTSs)
that bring together different types of clinicians and professionals. These
help to provide more joined up care and support, ideally in people’s
homes but if not then as close to them as possible.

There is evidence that suggests MDTs can result in improved
olttomes for people and their families, and higher quality,
rensonalised care. MDT working can lead to improved job satisfaction
fdDprofessionals and practitioners as a result of greater autonomy, skill
eguancement and knowledge sharing

« COMMUNITY SPIRIT v/,

MENTAL HEALTH
© SUPPORTING EACH OTHER \/

PROFESSIONAL

NURSE LOCALLY BASED \/
PRACTITIONER \l *

PI.IQAMF_\ZIC N ©BETTER CARE v,
GENERAL ; ® BETTER VALUE FOR MONEY v
PRACTITIONER © IMPROVE HOSPITAL CARE

N

o 'nIO’ROVE OUTSIDE
—_HOSPITAL cape v
7

SOCIAL CARE
PRACTITIONER

'4

CUNICAL
PHARMACIST

'IK VOLUNTARY SECTOR
PROVIDER

OBJECTIVE 3:

Excellent health and care services

Our approach:

Building on the excellent primary and social care services we have across BSW, joined up local teams will have a critical role
to play in providing both same day access for urgent care and continuity of care for individuals with long term conditions or
complex care needs.

They will focus on three key ‘offers’ to the local population:

* improved access to care & advice

»  proactive personalised care from a range of team members for individuals with long term or complex health needs.

*  helping everyone to stay well for longer (prevention)
.llgosic\(lad up local teams will be designed to serve populations of around 30,000-50,000 people in natural neighbourhoods across
Forming these teams is an important element in developing sustainable health and care services.

They will enable partner organisations to work together to ensure that individuals are accessing care and support from the
most appropriate sources, including voluntary and third sector organisations. This is important if health and care organisations
are to address the current workforce challenges that exist today and individuals are to make the most of the wide range of
resources that are available within their community.

These teams will work across traditional professional and organisational boundaries. To support this way of working we will
revise how our performance management, information sharing, clinical governance, information technology, finances and
contracting processes operate. This will help these neighbourhood teams operate with flexibility and responsiveness in the
way they support their local population.

Our commitments include:

Across BSW, we will develop integrated, multidisciplinary teams that deliver health and care services around the needs of
individuals. These will include integrated teams at ‘neighbourhood’ level, which will bring health and wellbeing services closer
to those who struggle to access services due to disability and poor access to transport.

We will also review community services and put integrated teams at the heart of the way these services are provided in future.
This will be a significant programme of work and will involve partners from across our health and care system.



OBJECTIVE 3:

< 5.6.3 Responsive local specialist services Excellent health and care services

The opportunity:

As highlighted, it can sometimes be hard for people across BSW to access services — particularly those who live in rural
areas or who have limited mobility.

Advances in technology means more services can be provided in local settings. Increasing the range of services
available within people homes and the community is a priority and is important in ensuring services are easy to
access for local people.

Our approach

We will aim to deliver services as effectively close to people’s homes as possible, ensuring they are responsive to
individuals’ needs.

Wo@s already underway on a range of initiatives including:

«Q
i. virtual wards to reduce the need to spend as much or any, time in a hospital bed.
ii. %nhanced access to community diagnostic facilities

Our commitments include:
i. Virtual wards

Virtual wards provide a safe and efficient alternative to the use of an NHS hospital bed, by supporting individuals to receive
their care, assessment, monitoring and treatment in their home or usual place of residence. Virtual Wards combine care
delivered by a range of staff supported by technology including a shared care record and remote monitoring. The virtual
ward services in BSW will provide a range of interventions, tailored to meet the needs of the individual, to help prevent
hospital admissions and to accelerate discharge from hospital.

We already have virtual ward beds in operation in the system and have plans to increase virtual ward capacity across
BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire over the coming year.

So far, the average length of stay has been 5-9 days and the majority of patients have been discharged to their usual place
of residence.

Our commitments (cont.)
ii. Community diagnostic facilities

BSW is committed to expanding community diagnostic facilities. These will
deliver additional, digitally connected, diagnostic capacity in BSW, providing
all patients with a coordinated set of diagnostic tests in the community, in as
few visits as possible, enabling an accurate and fast diagnosis on a range of a
clinical pathways.

The initial work in 2023 on community diagnostic facilities will focus on the
deployment of mobile units. From 2024 the focus will be on additional
permanent facilities within BSW.

©E
eE

IMPROVED

POPULATION
HEALTH
OUTCOMES

CROSS CUTTING THEMES

SUPPORT FOR Improve staff development INCREASED
THE INTEGRATION and satisfaction DIAGNOSTIC
OF CARE Make Every Contact Count and CAPACITY

support health promotion

Act as test sites for quality improvement,
research and innovation

Contribute to NHS Net Zero ambitions
; 2 Share learning across CDCs
and systems

IMPROVED Act as anchor institutions IMPROVED
PATIENT PRODUCTIVITY
EXPERIENCE & EFFICIENCY

REDUCED HEALTH
INEQUALITIES



5.6.4 High quality specialist centres

The opportunity:

The challenges of the pandemic and the pressures during the winter of 2022/23 have highlighted
the importance of hospital sector capacity being available for individuals with acute conditions.
We have the opportunity to ensure that residents across BSW benefit from the best acute
care.

Our approach:

Provider collaboration

Our hospitals and other specialist facilities play a critical role in the provision of services to
individ{ghls with urgent, long-term and elective health care needs.

QO
Throﬁgw the work of our Acute Hospitals Alliance (AHA), which involves the organisations that
run theGreat Western Hospital in Swindon, the Royal United Hospital in Bath and Salisbury
Distri@-lospital colleagues are working together to improve the way services are delivered.

Our commitments include:

v' The AHA is developing a clinical strategy that will set out the role the hospitals will play in the
delivery of urgent care services, management of long-term conditions and how they can
improve quality and productivity

v' The partners in the Acute Hospital Alliance are also working together on the development of
facilities in the Sulis Hospital in Peasdown St John. This modern facility will play a critical role
in reducing the waiting times for surgical procedures for the population of BSW

Quality and improvement

In BSW we want to establish and nurture a culture of openness, learning and continuous
improvement. We will deliver care that is safe, effective, well led, sustainably resourced and
equitable.

Our commitments include:

v' We will work with local communities, people using services (who are experts by experience)
and staff to shape the design and delivery of services.

v/ Set clear quality standards and expected outcomes when commissioning health and care
services for the population we serve

Excellent health and care services
5.6.5 Mental health and parity of esteem

The opportunity:

We know that mental health conditions have been rising across BSW, with mental health worsening due to factors such as the
Covid-19 pandemic and cost of living crisis. We also know that many individuals have struggled to access the support they
need when they need it. We will therefore put improving mental health and the principle of ‘parity of esteem’ at the heart
of our efforts to improve health and care services over the coming years (see below).

Our approach:

We will deliver services against a key principle of parity of esteem. This means we will give as great a focus to mental
wellbeing, mental health, and learning disabilities and autism as we do to physical health.

Our ambitions to improve mental health services across BSW will be set out in a dedicated Mental Health Strategy shortly. In
producing this strategy, working with partners and residents across BSW, we will:

» Take a strength based approach and building on what is already working well

» Build on partnership working at system and place.

» Be informed by those who use our services and the families and carers that support them daily.
» Be outward looking and learn from other systems within our region and beyond.

» Align with the BSW Care Model (see below)

Our commitments include:

v' Personalised care: We will use local intelligence to develop nuanced personalised models of care that reduce unwarranted
variation whilst paying attention to localised differences in our populations.

v' Joined up local teams: We will accelerate placed based integration of mental and physical health, through integrated
neighbourhood teams and Primary Care.

v' Healthier communities: We will take a holistic approach to mental health by aligning more closely with our local HWB
strategies.

v' Local specialist services: We will work with our specialist mental health providers to right size and shape local specialist
provision that is accessible, responsive, financially sustainable & reduces the need for out of area care.

v' Addressing inequalities. We will use data to inform our approach to targeted interventions in addressing inequalities



6. What enablers will help us to
achieve our vision?

B2&
ﬁi%ﬂ

\

6.1 Developing our workforce
37,600 people work in health
and care in BSW. Work is
underway to develop a BSW
People Strategy, with a strong
focus on recruitment and
retention of the workforce.

J

6.2 Estates of the future \
We have an opportunity to
create high quality estates with
seamless IT connectivity across
locations. We will designed our
facilities to ensure they are
sustainable, of high quality,
technologically enabled and in

There are a range of enabling activities that will underpin our progress against our Vision and Strategic
Objectives. Further detail on each will be set out in our Implementation Plan.

What we will do
Our priority is to improve both recruitment and retention of staff across BSW by creating a culture in which our workforce enjoy
satisfying careers, feel valued and are able to make their best contribution.

Our People Strategy will focus on four ambitions, which will be set out in further detail over the coming months:

Creating inclusive and compassionate work environments that enable people and organisations to work together
Making BSW an inspiring and great place to work

All staff feeling valued and having access to high quality development and careers

Using resources wisely to reduce duplication, enhance efficiency and share learning

the right place.

6.3 Environmental \
sustainability

We will ensure that we play our
part in addressing the climate
emergency and make our

services as sustainable as
possible.

J

The strategy will complement place-based workforce strategies within BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire.

mhat we will do \

The forthcoming BSW Together Infrastructure Strategy will focus on the following four priorities:

[.b.w!v!d

1. Access: Ensuring our estate is well-located, with good transport links and closer to communities with reduced access.

2. Performance: Ensuring our estate is operationally available when required, digitally-enabled to support system working,
well-utilised and incorporates smart building management systems

3. Efficiency: Ensuring the estate reduces our impact on the environment and represents excellent value for money

4. Quality and Standards: Reducing unwarranted variations, with new buildings following modern methods of construction and
future-proofed in design to provide flexibility

The strategy will complement local authorities’ Local Plans and place-based infrastructure strategies within BaNES, Swindon

Qd Wiltshire. /
ﬁVhat we will do \

We have come together to agree an ambitious and cocreated system-wide vision and set of commitments to begin our journey
towards delivering net zero health and care services in BSW. Headline commitments in our Green Plan include:

*  60% of BSW Together members will achieve net zero for the emissions we directly control by 2030
* 100% of BSW Together members will achieve net zero for the emissions we directly control by 2040
* 100% of BSW Together members will achieve net zero for the emissions we can influence by 2045

We will continue working to ensure alignment between this plan and environmental sustainability plans across BaNES, Swindon

and Wiltshire.




6. What enablers will
help us to achieve
our vision?

\

6.4 Making the best use of
technology and data

We will make the best use of
technology and data to improve
health and care for people in
BSW. We know that some people
cannot access technology and we
will make sure our services are

always accessible for everyone. j

~

6.5 Our role as Anchor
Institutions

We will harness the potential of
BSW health and care
organisations to play a greater
role in promoting the social and
economic interests of the local
areas they are rooted in.

J

»

What we will do

Digital solutions give us the potential to work differently, facilitating better, safer care and more efficient and effective use of resources. No more so has this
been demonstrated than through the BSW'’s response to COVID19.

Through our BSW Digital Strategy We have identified three strategic priorities in digital and data:

1. Information Sharing

2. Development of our digital workforce via a portfolio of projects

3. Ensuring contemporary cyber security is in place

Our commitments include:

An Electronic Patient Record (EPR). This is a critical building block to digital maturity for an organisation and provides massive opportunities for digital
transformation in efficiency and improvements to care. The Acute Hospital Alliance is leading work to align patient records. Work to progress a shared care

record, incorporating a broader range of health and care data, is also underway.

Infrastructure. We will develop shared infrastructure across BSW in terms of efficiencies and enable flexibility in ways colleagues work across our
organisations.

Digital design principles. As part of the development of the BSW Care Model the BSW Digital Board agreed a set of design principles. These principles set
out an agreed system-wide approach to the use of technology and digitally enabled transformation that are relevant for all professionals.

What we will do

Anchor institutions are large, public sector organisations that are called such because they are unlikely to relocate and have a significant stake in a
geographical area — they are effectively ‘anchored’ in their surrounding community. They have sizeable assets that can be used to support local economic
development, through procurement and spending power, workforce and training, and buildings and land.

We will harness the power of our existing institutions across BSW to deliver their potential as anchor institutions. This will help us support broader social and
economic development. It will also allow us to deliver on the ambitions set out in this strategy, for example our focus on preventing people from falling into ill
physical and mental health (as set out in Objective 1) through improving their socio-economic conditions and environment.

This will involve partners working as individual organisations. The main ‘anchors’ in a given place include the NHS, local authorities, universities, colleges,
VCSE organisations and increasingly businesses. But sitting at the heart of our vision for delivering social and economic development is a long-term journey
from focusing on anchor institutions to creating anchor systems. This will involve a more aligned focus on what we want to change, developed in partnership
with the range of other NHS and non-NHS anchors across the system all pulling in the same strategic direction for the economy.

Some organisations in BSW have already begun thinking about how they can play a bigger role as an anchor institution. Great W estern Hospital, for instance,
has identified five areas where it can make a difference as an anchor institution, helping to create jobs, forge closer links with other civic organisations and
improve its carbon footprint.




T/ obed

< 7. What happens next?

7.1 Delivering through our Implementation Plan

We are clear that we need to continue working with partners and
communities across BSW to demonstrate how we are progressing the
ambitions of this strategy and those which feed into it.

Our approach to doing this will partly be set out through our Integrated
Care Strategy Implementation Plan. This is our local version of a ‘Joint
Forward Plan’, which all Integrated Care Boards across England are
required to produce. It will outline specifically how NHS bodies plan to
deliver the ambitions of the Integrated Care Strategy, though we hope it
will be supported by the wider system, including local authorities and
voluntary, community and social enterprise partners.

The Plan will set out key milestones and deliverables residents can
expect over the coming years as we set out to deliver the ambition and
objectives of this strategy.

Like this strategy, the Implementation Plan is a Five-Year document that
will be updated to reflect progress and future development of the Strategy.
This annual refresh process will take place alongside the refresh of the
Strategy and will enable partners to review progress and to take into
account any changes in priority and population need.

Importantly. we will consult on the Implementation Plan with partners,
including our local Health and Wellbeing Boards.

BSW'’s first Implementation Plan will be published by 31 June 2023.

7.2 Have your say

We invite residents and partners across B&NES, Swindon and Wiltshire
to discuss this strategy and we intend to gather feedback as part of our
ongoing engagement with the public and system stakeholders over the
coming months. Details of this engagement exercise will be developed
shortly after the publication of this document.

Our vision, approach and strategic objectives will continue to evolve as
we engage further with BSW residents and respond to the changing
needs of the local population.

This document is therefore simply a first iteration. Have we got it right?

We welcome your comments, whether before or after publication. If you
would like to offer your thoughts on what you welcome in this strategy, or
how it could be improved, then please do get in touch.

Please send your thoughts to bswicb.bswstrategy@nhs.net



mailto:bswicb.bswstrategy@nhs.net

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

30 March 2023

Subject: Wiltshire Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Executive Summary

The Joint Local Health & Wellbeing Strategy (JLHWS) has been updated. The
Health and Wellbeing Joint Strategic Needs assessment (JSNA) and Joint Local
Health and Wellbeing Strategy are the foundations upon which the health and
wellbeing board exercises its shared leadership across the wider determinants
that influence improved health and wellbeing, such as housing and education.
JSNAs and JLHWSs enable commissioners to plan and commission integrated
services that meet the needs of their whole local community, in particular for the
most vulnerable individuals and the groups with the worst health outcomes.
Wiltshire’s JSNA was recently updated and published in the autumn of 2022. It
provides a summary of the current and future health and wellbeing needs of
people in Wiltshire. It builds on previous JSNAS to provide a comprehensive
picture of the health and wellbeing needs of Wiltshire using a broad range of
indicators presented in accessible format for all parties to use. This has
informed the development of the draft JLHWS together with the Health and
Wellbeing Board workshop held on 1 December and input from a steering group
incorporating public health, social care, NHS and Healthwatch Wiltshire
representatives to shape its structure and priorities. In January, the draft JLHWS
was approved for consultation and feedback is included as appendix 1. A
revised and updated strategy is included as appendix 2.

Proposal(s)

It is recommended that the Board
i) Notes the feedback summarised in Appendix 1 and thanks all boards,
organisations and individual respondents for their input
i) Approves the Wiltshire Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy at
Appendix 2 for publication

Reason for Proposal

It is a statutory responsibility of Wiltshire Council and the NHS to cooperate
through the Health and Wellbeing Board to develop a Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy

Lucy Townsend Fiona Slevin-Brown
Corporate Director, People  Place Director, Wiltshire
Wiltshire Council BSW NHS ICB

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Feedback from consultation on the draft Wiltshire Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Comments were received from various partnership boards and the health select committee, as well as
individual councillors, officers from HWB organisations and the voluntary and community sector.

There was broad agreement with the four strategic areas of the strategy as well as the overall aims within

it. A flavour of some of the suggestions received is included below (with comments collated to avoid

repetition where appropriate).

General comments

Summary of comment

Response

Need to reference cost of living challenges

Included in foreword

Need to reference life expectancy gap

Included on p3

Ensure consistent use of wider/ social
determinants

Made wider determinants throught

Need to reference primary care and eye care with
the other strategies

Included on final page

add some words on how the many plans,
programmes and strategies are co-ordinated.

Added on final page

both the ICS and Wiltshire will have a strategy.
Might we suggest to the ICP that they paste the
three ‘place’ strategies into theirs and only add a
light-touch overarching section a) to deal with
resource allocation and other issues that can only
be handled at the ICP level and b) to pull out
common factors to reinforce the whole system’s
commitment to major themes eg tackling
inequalities and prioritising prevention

Comment shared with ICP

Would have love to have seen more co-production
from the start, working with communities to set
the vision. The JSNA is a data tool only and is
based on need rather than strengths.
Communities don’t want to be done unto. The
community conversations work is a sign of hope.

the intentions of the priority areas are really good,
just concerns that they are still heavily tied to
existing structures and ways of working, meaning
you might not get the change that is needed.
Believe there could be a more radical shift of how
things are done which starts at people and
communities.

The strategy builds on the community
engagement undertaken for the previous
strategy and has been developed through a
collaborative process.

Additional reference to working with
communities included in the foreword

A very clear, comprehensive and well written
strategy which clearly places the community at the
heart of the strategy.

Some of the language around ‘personal
responsibility’ is a bit concerning. There is only so
much an individual can do when faced with the
inequity in our society.

The strategy prioritises addressing the wider
determinants of health and tackling inequalities
but alongside this reference is now made to
personal resilience and empowering individuals
as an alternative to personal responsibility.

Document is well-written in clear English

Page 75




Appendix 1

Order of priorities — should tackling inequality be
first given it is a vast agenda and one which the
NHS may be unable to focus on — whereas staff can
focus on prevention so could lead with that

The strategy progresses from action on wider
determinants (tackling inequality) through
prevention (individual empowerment and access
to services) through localisation and onto
integrated services. This is intended to mirror the
need for a ‘leftward shift’/ ‘upstream prevention’

Numbers have been removed from themes to
ensure they are viewed as equal.

Health in all policies is not part of NHS / social
service responsibility

The provision of community health services
needs to be considered alongside housing,
employment and planning

| agree with the 4 strategic areas and the achieving
change statements.

to demonstrate actionability there needs in my
view to be some reference to how the high level
aspiration will translate into on-the-ground action

The strategy references how the HWB will
consider regular progress reports on the delivery
of this strategy, which will inform the work
programme of the Wiltshire Integrated Care
Alliance and the individual work of members of
the board.

More specific comments

Summary of comment

Response

Need to reference food as well as fuel poverty
(affordable and healthy food options) and the need
to increase incomes

Included under tackling inequalities theme
(but not repeated under other themes to
ensure it remains concise)

Need to increase access to NHS dentists and
mental health services

The strategy includes reference to
improving access to services, as well as the
community mental health model and
reference to primary care strategy. The
JLHWS focuses on where joint work
between organisations is required —and
improved join-up of services through
community healthcare, primary,
secondary and tertiary healthcare
(including specialist services, for the
armed forces and their families,
pharmaceutical services and healthcare
in the justice sector) is a clear
commitment, recognising the
opportunities arising from forthcoming
devolution of NHSE funding in this area.

Invest in community based programmes &
social prescribing

Reference has been made to community
based programmes & social prescribing

Endorse population health approach - how will
this be put into practice on the ground e.g. Is
there are programme to cluster care services

Members of the HWB will report regularly
on progress against this objective using the
flexibilities they have available.

Page 76



Appendix 1

around GPs? Can we resist systems that
reward increased contact if they are handed
down from national level? How will we
measure population outcomes?

Reference has been made to a proactive
population health management approach —
rolling this out to new areas (such as
management of moderate frailty) each year
to enable earlier detection and intervention

Population outcomes will be measured
through the JSNA

Need to support healthy workplaces and
collaborate with local businesses

A reference to health workforce has been
included

Would like to see more reference to
community development using a strengths
based approach. Making sure that you bring
all members of the community together as
equals. Any methods that are more holistic in
approach.

This has been referenced within the
localisation connecting with communities
theme

Procurement should consider who is the best
provider for goods and services prioritising not
for profit and local

organisations where they are able to meet
service specifications.

This is covered under the ‘wider benefits’ of
social value procurement

Would prefer co-production to consultation —
ultimately you want to change the relationship
between health and care and wilts residents
from doing onto to being in it together. Prefer
hyper local approaches

The need for coproduction has been
referenced within the strategy.

Need to ensure that services are delivered in a
way that is culturally sensitive and responsive
to the needs of all communities within
Wiltshire, including those from diverse
backgrounds.

This is considered as part of the
statutory Public Sector Equality Duty

If shifting to community need to think about
proper care co-ordination, which could be with
the person, as there is a danger of people
falling through gaps and overreliance on
neighbours/ family/ friends

This has been referenced within the
working together theme, together with
support for unpaid carers

Would be great if you could link in with the co-
production plans for SC transformation

The need for coproduction has been
referenced within the strategy.

Include reference to VCSE under 4t aim

This has been included

Include reference to rural issues, young people
and armed forces

This has been included under the first,
second and fourth themes respectively.

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Wiltshire Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy
2023-2032

Foreword

The health and wellbeing of the people of Wiltshire is the highest priority for the Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing
Board. We are determined to ensure that “people in Wiltshire are empowered to live full, healthy and enriched
lives.”

This strategy has been developed based upon the evidence of need and has enabled the board to focus on four
thematic areas where it can have its most impact, ensuring everyone has access to the opportunities and
services that we would expect for our own friends and families. We know that our population is ageing (there is
a forecast increase of 87% in our 85 and over population by 2040). We also know that where someone is born
and raised in Wiltshire can have a significant influence on how healthy they are and how long they will live and
that, sadly, the pandemic and ensuing cost of living challenges have further exacerbated these health
inequalities. We want to ensure everyone can thrive in Wiltshire. Achieving this will mean a clear focus on
reducing inequalities but also connecting with communities to encourage local action and better tailoring the
delivery of our services to reflect the needs of local areas.

As organisations responsible for designing, commissioning and delivering a huge range of health and social care
services for Wiltshire residents, we are keen to make services the best they can be and excellent value.
Integrated working is an essential part of this. We also recognise the need to shift the focus from acute to
primary and community care and, in turn, to preventative activity and population health. A population health
approach will allow the risks and rewards of investment in services to be shared locally and the potential to try
new approaches such as clustering more care services around GPs or commissioning on the basis of whole
population health outcomes rather than systems which reward increased contact. It will also mean we fully
recognise the difference good jobs, housing, natural environments, education and community can make to
health and wellbeing.

We must work with local communities and target our collective resources where the evidence tells us action
will make the greatest improvements to people’s health and wellbeing. Therefore, our four guiding themes for
this strategy build on those of our previous strategy (and those reflected in Wiltshire Council’s Business Plan) as
a clear long term commitment to this way of working. They are:

1. Improving social mobility and tackling inequalities
2. Prevention and early intervention

3. Localisation and connecting with communities

4. Integration and working together

As a board we will continue to work closely together to deliver the vision of this strategy so that our ambition is
realised.

Clir Richard Clewer
Chair, Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board

Organisations represented on the Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board:

Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care System,

Wiltshire Council, Healthwatch Wiltshire, NHS England, Wiltshire Police and Crime
Commissioner, Wiltshire Police, Wiltshire Local Medical Committee, SW Ambulance Service
Trust, Avon and Wiltshire Mental Health Partnership, Oxford Health Trust, Wiltshire Health
and Care, HCRG, Royal United Hospital, Salisbury Foundation Trust, Great Western Hospital,
Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service, WiIt@ig@@lWry and Community Sector



Introduction

The Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) was introduced by the Health and Social Care Act 2012. It is a
partnership that brings together the leaders of the health and social care system. The board is required by
legislation to deliver specific responsibilities:

e Produce a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment
e Develop a Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy
e Encourage and enable integrated working between health and social care

The JSNA uses current data and evidence about health and wellbeing in Wiltshire, to highlight the health needs
of the whole community. It demonstrates how needs may vary for different age groups, as well as identifying
health differences for disadvantaged or vulnerable groups. The JSNA looks at a wide range of factors that help
shape and influence the health and wellbeing of individuals, families and local communities such as education,
employment, housing, transport and the environment.

www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk

Within this document health is understood to be a dynamic state of complete physical, mental, spiritual and
social well-being and not merely the absence of disease or infirmity.

This Health and Wellbeing Strategy is a shared strategy, which aims to improve the health and wellbeing of the
local population. It uses the analysis and data from the JSNA, to help identify and agree the key ambitions for
our population which as a Health and Wellbeing Board we will work together to deliver.

It does not list everything that all organisations will be doing to improve health and wellbeing. Instead it focuses
on where Wiltshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board can add value and sets out our vision for integrated working
for the future.

The purpose of the strategy is to enable:
e All health and wellbeing partners to be clear about our agreed priorities

e All members of the HWB to embed the priorities within their own organisations and ensure they are
reflected in a joined-up way in their commissioning and delivery plans (this is a statutory duty for the
council and the NHS)

e The board to hold organisations to account for their actions towards achieving the objectives and
priorities in the strategy

Wiltshire’s strategy has been developed in tandem with the new Integrated Care Strategy (the ‘system level’
strategy) for Bath and North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltshire (BSW) and the first five-year Joint Forward
Plan for the Integrated Care Board which will deliver it. The two strategies are complementary and differentiate
the activity that will be taking place at ‘system’ (ie BSW) and ‘place’ (ie Wiltshire) levels. To ensure alignment
Wiltshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board is consulted on the system level strategies and related delivery plans
and has the opportunity to include a statement on compliance with the JSNA and JLHWS within the forward
plan, as well as to be consulted on the annual report for BSW.

Wiltshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board will consider regular progress reports on the delivery of this strategy,
which will inform the work programme of the Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance and the individual work of
members of the board. The progress reports will also inform the timescale for any refresh of this strategy
before 2032.

Page 80



http://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/

Overview of Wiltshire population

Wiltshire’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment provides an in-depth analysis of the needs of the population of
Wiltshire. Below is an overview of population and deprivation:

Wiltshire’s current population:
- 510,400
- 51% female and 49% male

By 2040 in Wiltshire:

- Under 65+ population expected to have decreased by 3%

- 65+ population expected to have increased by 43%

- 85+ population expected to have increased by 87% (from 15,200 to 28,438)

Areas of deprivation:

There are 8 of the 285 small areas of geography (LSOAS) in Wiltshire that are within the 20% nationally
most deprived. They are classified as “urban city and town”, and found in Trowbridge, Chippenham,
Melksham and Salisbury. Households in Wiltshire in the most deprived areas experience higher levels of
fuel poverty (17% of households compared with 7% in the least deprived areas) and a gap in life expectancy
of up to 7 years with the least deprived areas (76.3 years life expectancy for men in the 10% most deprived
areas compared with 83.5 years for men in the 10% least deprived areas).

Health inequalities are understood to be avoidable, unfair and systemic differences in health between
different groups of people. There are many groups experiencing health inequalities including those from
ethnic minority communities, those experiencing homelessness, those with a learning disability and those
living in rural areas. It is useful to keep this in mind when reading through the JSNA.

The health of those in Wiltshire is generally very good compared to the national average. On the whole
people in Wiltshire have a higher life expectancy and healthy life expectancy than the England average.
Fewer people are living in areas of deprivation, smaller proportions are living unhealthy lifestyles, more
people have been vaccinated and crime and unemployment rates are very low. However, evidence from the
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment has highlighted that the most deprived 20% of areas within Wiltshire have
repeatedly poorer outcomes than the least deprived 20%.

Our communities living in those least deprived areas of the county, will enjoy a greater array of life chances
and more opportunities to lead a flourishing life. They also have better health. The two are linked: the more
favoured people are, socially and economically, the better their health. Inequalities within Wiltshire, and
the need to maintain a focus on major health issues, for example reducing deaths from cancer and
cardiovascular disease, mean that local services should always be accessible to all. Inequalities do exist in
Wiltshire and, with an ageing population structure, health needs are due to change further over future
years. This, combined with the reduction in the working age population, means that the current approaches
to health and care will not be sustainable in the future and could have an impact on all aspects of our lives if
good health is not prioritised. Therefore, we must narrow the gap in health and wellbeing outcomes. We
have to make sure everyone has the opportunity to have an excellent education, to learn skills and get a
good job, to live in a nice environment and live healthier lifestyles into old age.

Page 81



https://www.wiltshireintelligence.org.uk/jsna/

Vision

“People in Wiltshire are empowered to live full, healthy and enriched lives”
Key Themes of Wiltshire’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy

A: Improving social mobility and tackling inequalities

In everything we do, we consider the impact of the action on social mobility and ask how we can help to
tackle the disparities in opportunities, experience, access and health outcomes that exist within Wiltshire.
We focus on the factors that have the greatest influence on people’s health, such as ensuring good and
secure homes and jobs.

B: Prevention and early intervention

We take a long-term view, focusing on what is right for Wiltshire and invest in prevention and early
intervention to tackle problems before they get worse. We encourage personal resilience and have a whole
life approach to planning and providing services for our residents alongside this, aimed at improving
outcomes in population health and care.

C: Localisation and connecting with communities

We ensure our dialogue with communities is open, transparent and inclusive, in the right place and at the
right time so that the distinctive needs of local communities are met. We enable stronger and resilient
communities and support broader social and economic development

D: Working together and integration

We design and deliver our activities in partnership with service users, the voluntary, community and social
enterprise (VCSE) sector, local communities and public sector partners. We collectively consider how to
integrate our work, get maximum value for public sector spend and plan our use of the public sector estate
together.

Page 82



Theme A: Improving social mobility and tackling inequalities

In everything we do, we consider the impact of the action on social mobility and ask how we can help to
tackle the disparities in opportunities, experience, access and health outcomes that exist within Wiltshire.
We focus on the factors that have the greatest influence on people’s health, such as ensuring good and
secure homes and jobs.

Case for change

Whilst a significant proportion of our population are healthy; good health isn’t just about the treatment of
illness. It is the food we eat, the relationships we maintain, the environments in which we live and work and
the opportunities we have to thrive. Supporting people to remain healthy, independent and well is a crucial
feature of this strategy. To make the biggest changes in people’s health and wellbeing, we need to focus on
the social and environmental factors impacting on people’s lives. Addressing these wider determinants of
health - such as housing, unemployment, homelessness, education, social isolation, transport and
community safety — alongside recognition of the rurality of much of Wiltshire, is critical for improving social
mobility and tackling inequalities.

Achieving change
We will:

e Promote health in all policies — including housing, employment and planning. This will include the
development of sustainable communities, whole life housing and walkable neighbourhoods. The
review of Wiltshire’s Local Plan and Local Transport Plan is an important opportunity to deliver this.

e Support healthy home settings — with action on fuel and food poverty, helping people to find stable
well paid work and higher incomes, mental health and loneliness and by increasing digital inclusion

e Give children and young people the best start in life — with a focus on the whole family, family
learning, parenting advice, relationship support, the first 1000 days/ early years and community
health services

e Target outreach activity — identifying particular groups to improve health outcomes and access to
services (identifying and then focusing on several of these each year) - work to tackle root causes,
plan delivery and carry out evaluation.

e Improve access through online services, community locations and mobile services as well as
community diagnostic hubs.

1. The Home Setting 2. Early Identification and Prevention 3. Tackling Root Causes
The ‘home’ plays a key role in enabling Focus on children, working across Tackling root-causes and addressing causal
people to achieve good health and wellbeing. ‘whole’ family interventions factors; not just focusing on the symptoms
ot Symptoms
. ~  The result or outcome of the
é. problem
. 2
(ﬁ 0\ Lifecourse The Problem
N (8712 00]
LRy — | Diverting people from statutory or Causes
formal services through local, "The Roots” — system below
} . S X the surface bringing about the
flexible, community solutions problem {not always obvious)
— [—- 31
» Improved physical health, as well as « Reducing long-term health effects from * Reduce risk of frequent and multiple
better mental health and well being exposures of direct/in-direct harms on young contacts to services/agencies
« Better social interactions and inclusions people « Reduced victimisation
« Better access to services and » Increasing resilience of our whole population * Improved health and wellbeing realised
opportunities » Reducing social isolation and loneliness earlier

« Improved hewaa.ngdéelgegg



Theme B: Prevention and early intervention

We take a long-term view, focusing on what is right for Wiltshire and invest in prevention and early
intervention to tackle problems before they get worse. We encourage personal resilience and have a whole
life approach to planning and providing services for our residents alongside this, aimed at improving
outcomes in population health and care.

Case for change

Evidence suggests 60% of what we do to prevent poor health and improve wellbeing relates to wider
determinants of health i.e. the conditions in which people are born, grow, live, work and age. Unhealthy
behaviours for example smoking, alcohol misuse, poor diet and lack of physical activity, are significant
contributors to a large proportion of ill health and long-term health conditions such as cancers,
cardiovascular disease, diabetes and dementia. We need a system that is fit for purpose, can manage the
challenges of increasing demand, focuses on prevention, supports those with long-term conditions and
their carers and helps our populations to improve their health outcomes.

Achieving change
We will:

e Lay the foundations for good emotional wellbeing whilst young — by developing a coordinated
approach and promoting a core offer in schools across Wiltshire relevant to the challenges young
people face (including new challenges such as social media)

e Empower individuals across the life course —in all schools, with working age adults and for the
elderly — with advice focusing on healthy lifestyles, smoking cessation, alcohol and substance misuse

e Prevent ill health - through increased uptake of screening, health checks and immunisations as well
as ensuring the best use of antibiotics.

e Enable a healthy workforce through targeted preventative activity

e Adopt a proactive population health management approach — rolling this out to new areas (such as
management of moderate frailty) each year to enable earlier detection and intervention

Page 84



Theme C: Localisation and connecting with communities

We ensure our dialogue with communities is open, transparent and inclusive, in the right place and at the
right time so that the distinctive needs of local communities are met. We enable stronger and resilient
communities and support broader social and economic development

Case for change

Population growth and management of long term conditions means our health and care system is under
increasing pressure, particularly as it recovers from the pandemic. When people have the skills, knowledge
and confidence to manage their own health and care, not only do they achieve better health outcomes,
there is also the benefit of reduced healthcare costs and increased satisfaction with services. However,
when individuals in a community feel isolated, this impacts their ability to remain resilient, which is a strong
predictor for poor outcomes. Enabling communities to be stronger and more resilient allows local solutions
for local problems, by working together with partner agencies and the voluntary sector to meet their health
and wellbeing needs.

Achieving change
We will:

e Support local community action — through initiatives such as neighbourhood collaboratives allied to
the development of Primary Care Networks, community based programmes and social prescribing,
the community mental health model, area board activity using community area JSNAs to inform
local action planning and the allocation and bidding for wellbeing grants

e Pilot community conversations — starting with neighbourhoods in Wiltshire that have significant
deprivation and roll these out gradually across the county.

e Consider the way in which we buy goods and services can deliver improved local job opportunities
(acting as ‘anchor’ institutions) and other wider benefits (social value)

e Embed Healthwatch Wiltshire and voluntary and community sector voices in relevant decision-
making structures and ensure the public voice is heard with consultation results and co-production
reflected in decision papers and relevant attendance at the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Page 85



Theme D: Working together and integration

We design and deliver our activities in partnership with service users, voluntary, community and social
enterprise (VCSE) sector, local communities and public sector partners. We collectively consider how to
integrate our work, get maximum value for public sector spend and plan our use of the public sector estate
together.

Case for change

Our current health and care system is under pressure and can be confusing for staff, patients, families and
carers. As our populations get older and more people develop long-term health conditions, our system is
becoming less able to cope with the changing needs and expectations of the people it serves. This is leading
to higher demand for social care, carers and community health services and these pressures will continue to
increase with a reduction in the working age population. The way we pay for health and care services can
encourage high end care in expensive settings, often reinforcing isolated working practices. We currently
spend too much on services responding at the point of crisis and not enough on early intervention and
preventative support that aims to keep people well for longer. Initial signs are that covid has reinforced the
investment in acute services and although there has been some staffing growth there are also challenges
with increasing activity and productivity across the system to address the elective care backlog.

Achieving change
We will:

e Provide integrated, personalised services at key stages in a person’s life — this will include starting to
complete later life planning with people in their early 60s (or before that in more deprived areas) so
that we are preparing for when they are older, end of life care, and increasing the provision of
personal budgets and coproduction of services

e Boost ‘out-of-hospital’ care, encouraging

a ‘hospital without walls’ model with g xive care

improved digital and local access to bQ‘

consultants, and dissolving the divide Q’bo 9 Support, 1 Stalrltweu,

between primary and community health R ggggg':tnt?\e ls‘tvaeyvv"veeli and
End of Life age well

services - through coordination of
community multi-disciplinary teams,

2 Live well

Person- with 1 or

Q
&
4
. . . Q centred, dignified more long
clustering services around primary care o |longtemmcare T o
. -
networks, and guaranteeing support to = v *
people in care homes % 7 “ " éf&‘,ﬁﬁ?&
e Enable frontline staff to work more v Y I SO mormkiies
closely together — planning our
workforce needs together, developing thGm,& & it g'
. . . andover effective support
case studies on front line cooperation, P ducharge 5 B s P bb
. anning an
supporting shared records and IT and (@] post support pemr?{'gxfrde &_kq’
. . specialist a
sharing estates wherever possible % acute care ®

e Ensure carers benefit from greater
recognition and support by improving
how we identify unpaid carers

o
s 0el?
es to prO"‘de ¥

e Improve join-up of services through community healthcare, primary, secondary and tertiary
healthcare (including specialist services, for the armed forces and their families, pharmaceutical
services and healthcare in the justice sector)

e Drive improvement by delivering our vision through collective oversight of quality and performance,
reconfiguration of clinical pathways, recommissioning of services and overseeing pooled budgets
and joint teams together (through the Wiltshire Integrated Care Alliance). The ICA will bring
together officers from the relevant orgaigi%ag%ngegnd report regularly to the Health and Wellbeing
Board on progress against this strategy and ¥s own transformation programme as well as the Better
Care Plan.



Summary

Theme | Improving social Prevention and Localisation and Integration and working
mobility and early intervention connecting with together
tackling inequalities communities
Actions | Promote health in all | Lay the foundations | Support local Provide integrated services at
to policies — including for good emotional | community action — | key stages in a person’s life —
achieve | housing, wellbeing whilst through initiatives including later life planning,
change | employment and young — by such as end of life care, and increasing
planning. This will developing a neighbourhood the provision of personal

include the
development of
sustainable
communities, whole
life housing and
walkable
neighbourhoods.

Support healthy
home settings — with
action on fuel & food
poverty, help to find
stable well paid
work, mental health
and loneliness and
by increasing digital
inclusion

Give children and
young people the
best start in life —
with a focus on the
whole family, family
learning, parenting
advice, relationship
support, the first
1000 days and
community health
services

Target outreach
activity — identifying
particular groups to
improve access to
services and health
outcomes and tackle
root causes

Improve access
through online
services and
community locations

coordinated
approach and
promoting a core
offer in schools
across Wiltshire

Empower
individuals across
the life course —in
all schools, with
working age adults
and for the elderly —
with advice focusing
on healthy lifestyles,
smoking cessation,
alcohol and
substance misuse

Prevent ill health -
through increased
uptake of screening,
health checks and
immunisations as
well as tackling
antimicrobial
resistance through
the best use of
antibiotics

Adopt a proactive
population health
approach —rolling
this out to new
areas (such as
moderate frailty)
each year to enable
earlier detection
and intervention

Pag

collaboratives allied
to the development
of Primary Care
Networks,
community based
programmes and
social prescribing,
the community
mental health
model, area board
activity

Pilot community
conversations —
starting with
neighbourhoods in
Wiltshire that have
significant
deprivation and roll
these out gradually
across the county.

Consider the role
that procurement
can play in
delivering social
value and the way in
which organisations
can act as anchor
institutions

Embed Healthwatch
Wiltshire and VCS
voices in relevant
decision-making
structures; ensure
the results of
consultation are
reflected in decision
papers

e 87

budgets and coproduction of
services

Boost ‘out-of-hospital’ care,
dissolving the divide between
primary and community health
services - through community
multi-disciplinary teams,
clustering services around
primary care networks, and
guaranteeing support to
people in care homes

Enable frontline staff to work
more closely together —
planning our workforce needs
together, developing case
studies on front line
cooperation, supporting
shared records and IT and
sharing estates wherever
possible

Ensure carers benefit from
greater recognition and
support by improving how we
identify unpaid carers

Improve join-up of services
including specialised
commissioning

Drive improvement through
collective oversight of quality
and performance,
reconfigurations and
recommissioning; overseeing
pooled budgets and joint
teams together —including the
ICA transformation
programme and Better Care
Plan




Wider determinants of health and wellbeing

General socioeconomic, cultural and
environmental conditions

Agriculture and food production
Education

Work environment

Living and working conditions
Unemployment

Water and sanitation

Health care services

Housing

Strategic links

Social and community networks

Individual lifestyle factors

Age
Sex
Constitutional factors

Wiltshire Health and Wellbeing Board members will champion the themes and commitments of the
Wiltshire Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy within other strategies their organisations are
responsible for, looking for joint action where appropriate, to ensure a comprehensive and coordinated
approach. These include:

Environment

Local Plan and Local Transport Plan
Housing Strategy

UK Shared Prosperity Fund Investment
Plan

Economic Strategy

Wiltshire Climate Change Strategy and
Delivery Plan. NHS Sustainability Strategy
Wiltshire Playing Pitch Strategy

Park and Open Spaces

Blue and Green Infrastructure

Air Quality Strategy

Licensing Policy

Children’s Services, Education and Sills

Youth Justice Plan

FACT Partnership Strategy
Looked After Children Strategy
SEND and Inclusion Strategy
Transitions Plan
Disadvantaged Learners

Early Help

Mental Health and Wellbeing
Children and Young People’s Plan
Kinship care

Positive leisure time activities
Local Skills Improvement Plan

Voluntary and Community Sector

Corporate services

Workforce
Procurement
Estates
Digital

Health and social care

Page 88 -

Integrated Care Strategy and Joint
Forward Delivery Plan

Better Care Plan

Inequalities Strategy

BSW Care Strategies — Elective, Urgent,
Acute

Primary Care, Eye Care, Dental Care,
Pharmacies

Suicide prevention

End of Life Care

Mental Health and Wellbeing

Autism and Learning Disability Strategy
Annual Public Health Report

Wiltshire Community Safety Partnership
Strategy

Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence
Strategy

Homelessness Strategy

Sexual Health and Blood Borne Viruses
Strategy Obesity Strategy

Dementia Strategy

Carers’ Strategy

Leisure and Physical Activities, Libraries



68 abed

<

Wiltshire Alliance

Neighbourhood
Collaboratives

and

Connecting with
Our Communities

Update for Health and Wellbeing
Board — March 2023




Neighbourhood Collaboratives

T
jab)
«Q
®
O
o




Neighbourhood Collaborative Model

Vision and Purpose

The model is
underpinned by a
Readiness Review
Assessment,
comprehensive Launch
Prqgramme and

The Model
Exgnsive set of

su@oorting tools,
tog@ther with a direct
link to the Project
Team.

Membership

Wiltshire
Collaborative
Network

¢ To reduce health and wellbeing inequality gaps within neighbourhoods across
Wiltshire by working together on the priorities and improvements that are important
to local people. Collaboratives align with our Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

e Establish a Collaborative group in each ‘neighbourhood’ to develop areas of work,
addressing local health and wellbeing challenges together — with support from a
Wiltshire-wide group of professionals and each other.

e Underpinned by data (new tools and methodologies), community and staff feedback,
views and engagement.

e share data, knowledge, resources, and experience to co-produce and design solutions
to local community challenges

e Will develop integrated working (Fuller Stocktake)

e Roughly on PCN footprints, without prescribed structures

e Sustainable and long term vision — no new funding

e Supports integrated working and enhances other programmes.

e Prioritises prevention, relationships, mutual aid, test and learn culture

Collaboratives will include partners across Health and Social Care, Voluntary Community
Social Enterprise, Local Authority partners, (such as Area Boards, Education, Housing),
Police, Fire and many Community Groups

A forum to connect, learn and share across all the Neighbourhood Collaboratives —
celebrating success, seeking and receiving support, and connecting into networks of
professionals




Neighbourhood

Neighbourhood Collaborative Model Collaborative

BSW Programmes and Regional Forums

Learning and Sharing beyond Wiltshire borders and across programmes Community voices / Social

Care / ICB / Community
Services / Education / DWP /
VCSE / Mental Health /
Children's Services / Fire /

Wiltshire Neighbourhood Collaborative Police and many more

Learning and Sharing across Wiltshire and between Collaboratives, Focussing on
Population Health and Wellbeing Gaps across Wiltshire.

Links with Health and Wellbeing Board Most work will be

community driven —
some change
Wiltshire -wide

26 abed

M eighbourhood
Collaborative

I e ghibourbood
Colaborstive

eighbourhood
Collsorative

Integrated




Features of a Neighbourhood Collaboratives

~

What they will be What they won’t be

Driving change
Informal but structured

Inclusive groups — broad participation and
involvement

Sustainable — a long term view of change and
dmprovement.

(@)

%upported by data underpinned by PHM approach
w

Engaging with community and local populations
Community asset based

Connecting work across the system
Supported by a network of professionals

Supportive of Integrated Neighbourhood Teams work

Performance managed/PM tools
Contracted
Mandated — in terms of establishing or structurally

Unstructured — but must have clear internal
governance and decision-making pathways

Regulated
Independent organisations/structure/employers

Space to undermine other groups/existing projects or
work

Vehicles to drive all the system work
|solated — not connected to other programmes

Driven by individual agendas — this is about
population health and wellbeing



Steering Group Meetings — March ‘23 Update

Representative organisation/service

ICB Wiltshire Locality
Team

ICB — Population Health

Area Boards — Wiltshire
Council

Wiltshire Council Social
Care

Public Health

WiItsBire Council — Library
Ser\(g:es

Heafthwatch
O
Prim%ry Care

VCSE

Acute Trust - Strategy
Teams

Wiltshire Council —
Systems Thinking

AWP
Safeguarding

WHC

Children & Young People
Police
Fire & Rescue

Education (awaiting rep)

Housing (awaiting rep)

Environment (awaiting
rep)

Community Groups

ICB - Estates

The Steering Group; The group met for the first time in December 2022. For many it was the
first time they were participating in an Alliance programme and working with colleagues across
the system. Since this initial meeting the Group have met in February and March and have been
instrumental in guiding the programme. In response to feedback from the Steering Group the
Pathfinder site in BOA & Melksham has been developed and the Readiness Review, a tool for
identifying partners’ preparedness to engage with the Collaborative model, has been approved.
The focus for our meeting at the end of April will be around the roll out of the next phase of the
programme, including the Launch programme and the development of the Wiltshire
Collaborative Forum.

Pathfinder Site; Melksham and Bradford on Avon area have agreed to be the Pathfinder site to
rapidly test and learn from the model and feed learning into the Programme, informing the tools
and approach that we will use for the other sites. An initial area has been identified, (Falls &
Falls risks), and meetings scheduled during March 23 will provide the platform for emerging
collaborative members to interrogate our data and information, to agree a cohort and consider
possible approaches to support this group of people.

Other sites; Trowbridge Team are making progress on the initial pilot work, and will be offered
support to expand to the full programme. Discussions with other sites are also underway.

Communications Plan; The Project Team will continue to provide progress updates through their
Newsletters. This month the Project Team will also produce an elevator pitch, a short comms
piece, about the Neighbourhood Collaborative programme following a request made at the last
Steering Group meeting. This will be used as part of the comms engagement plans that
Steering Group members have agreed to promote across their organisations.

Milestone Plan; We will share with the Steering Group the revised programme plan which will
include the launch programme.




Progress Against Objectives
| [Objestve _ [ProgessamdNextSteps

To establish three Neighbourhood Collaboratives sites —
April 2023 Governance and membership in place, having

1 undertaken data and listening exercises and commenced
at least 1 population health and wellbeing-led project.

To develop and offer a Readiness Review to facilitate the
2  development of the Neighbourhood Collaboratives by
those living and working within each PCN footprint.

To provide additional support and advice via a series of
3 launch/induction events offered to those steering the

o5 project within the Neighbourhood.

Q
@ To develop and offer a toolkit of supporting resources and
8 information for use by each collaborative.

To establish the Wiltshire Collaborative as a connecting,
learning and sharing forum.

To develop a comms and engagement plan for the
6 Collaborative programme.

To ensure that a reporting/governance model is in situ to
support the improvement.

To engage all of our neighbourhoods in this programme
8 by the end of 2023

» Trowbridge site (initial pilot) continues with it's work in preventing increases in the housebound
population. Work is starting to broaden out and formalise the collaborative model in this PCN area.

* Melksham and Bradford on Avon — pathfinder site. Work commenced in Falls prevention for people
previously unknown to be at risk.

* Devizes PCN area has agreed to progress with the Collaborative model — at initial stages.

COMPLETE. Readiness review has been approved by the steering group following testing and
engagement in pathfinder site and through Steering Group members.

Launch programme development nearing completion. 6 modules can be delivered flexibly in line with
neighbourhood needs. Reviewed by Steering Group and initial dates set.

Toolkit development complete for launch programme, although this will be continually updated. Next
steps are to improve the accessibility and formatting of the kit itself.

The Steering Group is established and well attended. This group will evolve to the Wiltshire
Collaborative by the end of June 2023.

Successful Steering Group workshop in March has developed the plan. This will be launched during
April. New Newsletter format is already in circulation. Steering Group made commitments to share the
work of the programme and to further engage with colleagues. Aiming to launch pod casts etc..

Complete for the programme structure. Currently working through a testing model with the Pathfinder
site.

On Track — built into Comms and Engagement plan and development of the Wiltshire Collaborative

group.
Milestone plan top be refreshed



Connecting with Our Communities




Summary

Purpose of the Connecting with Our Communities (CWOC) Group

/6 gbed

The CWOC group will have a ‘helicopter view’ of Alliance work and will provide a mechanism to support and guide meaningful
community engagement during throughout development, initiation and delivery of our transformation and service improvement work.

To be a connecting space for organisations and people wanting to undertake meaningful community engagement. Group members
can offer their own skills and expertise and signpost to other resources and groups.

To be a vehicle for sharing learning and best practice so we grow our knowledge and capability together.

Agreeing and role modelling our Alliance principles of engagement, advocating and enabling good practice across all of our community
voice and engagement work.

Providing a forum to establish working relationships and processes to enable our community engagement work to be successful.

Be the connecting group with wider scale work across the BSW system and work in line with national and BSW Strategies and
Guidance.

Following a period of developmental work and a large scale workshop, the CWOC group has been re-established.

Membership has been refreshed — there is more scope to broaden this further

Following a gap analysis, the group has identified a programme of priority work against the national and local strategy principles, so we
can move towards what ‘good’ looks like.

Connected to other work programmes including Community Voices and Neighbourhood Collaboratives

Begun to develop the framework it will use to provide advice and engagement integration to the Alliance work areas — ensuring
decisions are made having embedded the views of our population in the work itself.



Progress Overview
Area _ |Update

Group Arrangements Meetings have been re-launched and a TOR and structure are in place. Sponsors of this work have been agreed.

Membership While the current membership of CWOC is something to celebrate, the group intend to broaden membership further to ensure inclusive
representation. The VCSE sector and Wiltshire Council are well represented — we will continue to reach out to organisations such as housing,
libraries, police, fire and rescue, faith groups, community interest groups etc.

Operational pressures have prevented many provider partners from attending CWOC meetings. The group needs to consider how it can
facilitate the involvement of those who are missing from the current sessions.

Engagement Advice The Engagement Advice Framework (colloquially called the “Otter’s Den”) is a mechanism where individuals, teams or organisations etc can
Fragnework share their intended are of engagement or programme of work with the CWOC membership to receive feedback and support related to
engagement with stakeholders and the wider community and to join pieces of work and engagement together. One of CWOCs core aims is to
bring the voice of the community into the work we do and, in this regard, the CWOC group can serve as an enabling group. This group of
experts with experience in engagement can be a valuable resource for those looking to work with communities.

Following a test of the model, 5 broad areas are being developed into an methodology. These Are: Co-Production, Consultation &
Engagement, Learning, Research & Best Practice, Resources and Data. Our next step for this piece of work is to work through the collated
feedback and agree as a group a ratified framework that can be used.

g6 abe

Work Programme The Steering group has identified it’s priorities in working towards the national and BSW People and Communities guidance and Strategy — this
Priorities will be developed into an initial programme of work. The process to do this resulted in extensive debate and requires further discussion and
refining. Initial points are below. Further detail is available.

o “Data” is a golden thread throughout the 5 principle areas. Members are keen that community data and data held by stakeholders external to the ICB are incorporated
and considered. The importance of qualitative data was emphasised, and members expressed this should be seen as providing equal value as quantitative data.
Finally, information governance obligations were mentioned, and the group discussed the importance of being able to meet these obligations easily to ensure they do
not become a barrier to innovation.

o Use of resources in the most efficient way and not duplicating across partners was another golden thread, this in turn generated lots of discussion regarding mapping
of services/programme of work/data. It also related back heavily to the data conversation, specifically the importance of sharing data across partners.

o When discussing health inequalities, the group highlighted the need for a gap analysis of health inequalities and the requirement for tools needed to be developed to
assist with this analysis. This relates heavily to the Neighbourhood Collaboratives programme and the tools being developed/collated can serve to assist the CWOC
group as well.

o Members also discussed the importance of including those in our communities that we have traditionally found are harder to reach, to ensure we can capture their

I voices and reflect them in the work that we do. This will likely feature heavily in our Engagement Advice Framework and will form a large part of this piece of work. I



Next Steps

The CWOC group is progressing well, and a structure of meetings will be established across 23/24.

Next steps include:-

e \Working with other groups to improve the range of membership, and consider how to include voices from
within our communities.

Finalise the Engagement Advice Framework, pilot and embed.

Understand how information can be shared across all partners, removing barriers that prevent collaboration
in engagement activity.

® 66 9684

|[dentify Information Governance obligations and ensure compliance.

Define and agree the scope of various mapping exercises the group now wants to undertake (programmes,
sources of community information, community assets etc..) — this is not about duplicating existing resources,
but about understanding and sharing where those resources are.

e Further development and engagement tools to support the Neighbourhood Collaboratives programme.

e Develop the ‘expert hub’ model, design and deliver solution for information collation and sharing, working
with system colleagues.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Wiltshire Council
Health and Wellbeing Board

30t March 2023

Subject: Wiltshire SEND and Inclusion Strategy

Purpose of Report

1. To provide HWB with an update regarding the progress of the six strategy
priority areas from the SEND and Inclusion (SEND&I) strategy and to
provide information and a timeline for the development of the next iteration
of the strategy.

Relevance to the Health and Wellbeing Strategy

2. The SEND&I strategy has relevance to each of the four health and
wellbeing themes presented within the Health and Wellbeing Strategy:

Prevention — working to ensure that support is available from across the
local area to support emerging needs in children and young people, for
example where young people experience anxiety and challenges to their
mental health

Localisation — work to enable children and young people with SEND to
be able to attend a schools setting which is proximate to where they live,
wherever possible, through the development of additional specialist places
and inclusion support to mainstream schools and settings

Tackling Inequalities — activity to support education providers to identify,
understand and support a range of SEND needs within their setting. Work
to ensure that opportunities are available in the wider community which
welcome and include learners with SEND

Integration — working as a local area partnership to broaden, develop and
build services and support for young people with SEND and their families

in Wiltshire.
Background
3. Wiltshire Council is required to have a published strategy in relation to

SEND. Wiltshire has a SEND&I strategy which was produced in early
2020 following a period of engagement and coproduction with a wide
range of stakeholders, including young people with SEND and their
families during 2019. The process of coproduction is, by its nature, time
intensive and requires time and space to enable ongoing engagement and
‘checking back’ with stakeholders to ensure that the final document

Page 101



reflects effectively what has been shared and what the priority areas for
activity in relation to SEND are from a range of perspectives.

The COVID pandemic delayed the launch of Wiltshire’s SEND&I strategy
and whilst there is demonstrable progress with many elements, some
have been delayed and some have changed shape, in response to the
post pandemic landscape within schools and settings. The Wiltshire
SENDG&I strategy was shared and approved by the Health and Wellbeing
Board in September 2020.

The strategy has six identified priority areas which are:

Developing holistic plans for children and young people
Inclusion and removing exclusion in education
Inclusion and wellbeing in the community

Improving the range and quality of provision

Progress and attainment

Well planned transitions

ouALNE

Each of the six priority areas has a nominated ‘workstream lead’ who
enables that activity relating to the area and its impact is regularly
considered and collated.

Governance for the SEND&I strategy is through the SEND Board, which
has a broad range of groups and services represented through its
membership. Membership is from across the local area partnership.

An extension of 12 months was agreed by cabinet in January 2023 to
enable a co-produced SEND&I strategy to be delivered which effectively
details the areas for development and delivery in this area.

Main Considerations

5. To have oversight and an opportunity to discuss the progress achieved in
relation to the six priority areas detailed in the SEND&I strategy and the
impact of these for young people and families in Wiltshire.

6. To have oversight and an understanding of the timeframe for the next
iteration of Wiltshire’s SEND&I strategy

Next Steps

7. Having had an opportunity to hear about the progress made against the

six priority areas of the SEND&I strategy the board is invited to consider
when a further update should be brought for consideration.

Page 102



Helean Hughes/Kai Muxlow/Cate Mullen

Director of Education and Skills/ Commissioning Manager, Specialist
Services/Head of SEND and Inclusion

Wiltshire Council

Report Author:
Helean Hughes Director of Education and Skills

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Well-Being Board
SEND Inclusion Strategy

GOT obed

Wiltshire Council
——————



SEND Inclusion Strategy 2020-2023

The vision is to work together to create an environment where:

‘All children and young people with SEND and their families will have a voice

that is heard. They will know how to access, and be able to access, the joined

up support they need to thrive in their communities, to enjoy life and reach
their full potential”

90T abed

This is done through working together across all departments and with
colleagues in Health and Social Services

Wiltshire Council
————_



Co-Production

The current strategy was developed as a result of working in partnership with
parents, carers, children and young people.

Wiltshire Parent Carer Council was a central part of this work, alongside work with
other voluntary organisations, health colleagues, schools, nurseries and community
health providers.

As a partnership we want the very best for our young people with SEND and believe
that inclusion should be at the heart of our work so that every child or young person
with SEND feels valued and empowered to be part of their community now and in the
future.

/0T abed

Wiltshire Council

——————_




The Priorities

e Developing holistic plans with children and young people
¢ Inclusion and removing exclusion in education
¢ Inclusion and well-being in the community

e |Improving the range and quality of provision

80T abed

e Achievement and progress
e Well planned transitions

Wiltshire Council

@_



Priority 1

Reconfigured the SEND
team to ensure focus
upon both new
assessments and reviews
of existing EHCPS

Working to recruit to
health advisor positions
to support the provision

of health advice as part of
all new EHCNA

Refreshed medical needs
advice written by DCOs

Financial investment
made in the SEND team
to ensure that staffing
levels are sufficient for
the work required of the
team

DCO process put into

place for supporting the
provision of compliant
health advice and
wording used in our
EHCPs

Development of new
online EHCNA process,
codesigned with
SENCOs to streamline
and simplify the process

Created and recruited to
a DSCO post to support
work across social care in
relation to EHCPs

Implementation of QA
process for EHCPs which
will allow benchmarking
across other LAs

Educational
representation, through a
secondment, put in place

to support the autism
waiting list initiative

Developing a process for
the provision of social
care advice for all new

EHCNA

Appointment of a Local
Offer Officer and
improvements made to
the Wiltshire site
incorporating input from
across the local area

Development of
‘Discussion and Decision
Groups’, known as DaDs
to support each aspect of
statutory SEND decision

making

Wiltshire Counclil




Priority 2

Implementation of a Roll-out of toolkit for Co_-production of a Focused work from the
Wiltshire Approved schools to support best guidance resource on Virtual School to reduce

Alternative Provision practice in use of Ordinarily Available exclusion of Children

; ) : o Provision for All Learners
(WAAP) list available Alternative Provision, (OPAL) with additional Looked After

for schools with re-integration focus

needs in Wiltshire
education settings

service delivery model training offer that Advisor function from Trauma-Informed

for the behaviour support focuses on quality first within school Practice training to

service, to focus on teaching for inclusion, effectiveness to improve schools and settings,

capacity building for utilising expertise within strategic leadership of with a focus on

schools school effectiveness SEND in Wiltshire attachment, trauma and
schools ili

OTT obed

Strenathenina of SEN mplementation of a : . Further enhancement of
2 2 quality assurance ZASU FElIL D[l Healthy Schools whole

Support expectations for ¢ K F model in a Wiltshire hool h:
Children Looked After FAMEWOIKIOR school approach:

Alternative Provision Joealling @ lngllield Eiry healthy relationships,

with an improved help for children with
tolerance and respect

that is not DfE

graduated response behaviour that

reqgistered
9 challenges




Priority 3

Work is taking place via the
FACT (Family and Children's
Transformation Programme to
support of partnership
approach to early intervention

SEND needs are considered as part of
all HV assessment contacts and
development is specifically reviewed at
the mandated contacts and following
periods of intervention and support to
meet health and development needs.
This supports early identification of
need.

Development of short breaks
across Wiltshire to offer parents
and carers a wider range of
options to access short breaks

Work taken place with special
schools to develop an
understanding of the model of
delivery of health interventions

The PHN'’s have been included in the
HCRG Care Group review of SEND
pathways to ensure they contribute to
EHCP assessments as clinically needed.
Health Visitors also attend the HELM
(health education and liaison meetings)
to ensure information is shared in a
timely way and that joint plans are in
place to support the child and family are
in place.

DCOs are undertaking quality

assurance of draft EHCPs to

ensure they are concise, up to
date and legally compliant

Wiltshire Counclil




Priority 4

Creation of high quality Primary
resource base provision at Avenue,
Westbury, Charter, Kiwi, Clarendon, and
Lyneham in 2022

Enhanced alignment of plans and
objectives with key stakeholders,
including Health, Parents & Carers,
School Alliances, Wilts Council
mainstream school strategy; RSC

Creation of high quality Special School
places at Silverwood, Exeter House and
Springfields in 2022

Support to school delivery partners,
including financial support, consultation
processes, project management, access
to services and support

More robust place planning analysis
(developed across SEND teams),
resulting in shared understanding of
current and future demand for Special
School places.

Pipeline of delivery plans: SAIL (Sept
23), Rowde new build (autumn 23);
Castle Mead modular build (Sept 23)
Springfields Aspen development (Jan
24); Silverwood Chippenham and
Trowbridge refurbishment (2024/25);
Wilts Council ISS capital bid; DfE free
school bid.

Wiltshire Counclil




¢TT obed

Priority 5

2022 data for Phonics
shows that the target has
been met with 3.6% above
National

2022 data for Key Stage 2
shows that SEND pupils
were above for Reading,

in line with National for
Writing

2022 data for Greater
Learning Depth shows
target has been met with
2% above National

Over 60 schools have
already accessed and
utilised the SEND SEF

2022 data for Key Stage 1
shows that SEND pupils
perform better than
National with 3% above in
reading, 1.6% in writing
and 4.2% in mathematics

Ofsted Parent view results
vary between 34%- 100%
in the last 12 months on
Q7. The average is
around 70% in terms of
responses

Wiltshire Council

@*




Priority 6

SEND training has
been offered to all
schools/provisions

Growing up and moving on
guide has been created to
be used as a tool during
annual reviews to share
information on
opportunities with young
people and their families

Get Connected is now
core funded and all
special schools are

involved

Inclusion Project has
started, and this will
be ongoing

Growing up and moving
on event was held in
October, aimed
specifically at young
people and attended by
special and mainstream
schools and colleges

Dingley’s promise work
supporting inclusion
between mainstream

and specialist providers

in ongoing

Military schools
network is now up and
running and meeting
regularly

Right choice page has
been developed and is
now live

Ongoing work with
resource bases to link
with special schools
being facilitated
through Open
Mornings

PFA Post 16 team are
working with the colleges
monthly to identify and
support young people
who are struggling with
education

LD and Autism
Programme board for
all ages has been
established across
BSW

Employer engagement
event is being planned
for early 2023

Wiltshire Counclil




Areas for Development

Development of the voice of children and young people

Neuro-Diversity Pathway development

Continued improvement in waiting times for EHCPs

Development of transition guides for primary age children

Continued improvement in communication between education, health and social care

Ex:=nd the work around governance awareness of SEND/Inclusion priorities to Trustees in MATs

Capwre SEND student voice through Pupil Surveys and other relevant mechanisms

Develop and strengthen the relationship between Resource Bases and Special Schools and utilise the experience and skills within these settings to enhance mainstream
provision

Engagement with new and prospective Resource Base school leaders to meet specific gaps in 2023/ 24 and build capacity/contingency in system. Create a minimum of 3
engagement opportunities per year

Ensure alignment of mainstream and SEND plans, including SEND input into School Places Plan 2022-2027. Also, joint mainstream/RB developer requirements for growth
areas (all year)

Wiltshire Counclil




SEND Inclusion Strategy Planning

2020-2023 Strategy

Extension Year: September 2023 to August 2024

Sept to Dec 2023 Jan to Feb 2024 Feb to Apr 2024 Apr to Jul 2024

Finalising Plan
Presenting to
SEND and Health
and Wellbeing

Boards .
V\rul:llllc \-UUI‘ICI'

S ——

Stakeholder Listening to external Focus Group
Mapping and internal Sessions
Scoping stakeholders Developing key
Comms Developing themes strategic aims




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	7 Draft Joint Local Health and Wellbeing Strategy for consultation
	13 Urgent Items

	6 Final Integrated Care Strategy
	BSW Integrated Care Strategy
	BSW Integrated Care Strategy - Draft ver3.0
	Slide 1 
	 
	1. Welcome to our Integrated Care Strategy
	 
	Slide 5 
	 
	��	�	 
	Slide 8 
	Slide 9 
	Slide 10 
	��	�	 
	Slide 12 
	Slide 13 
	Slide 14 
	Slide 15 
	Slide 16 
	Slide 17 
	Slide 18 
	Slide 19 
	Slide 20 
	Slide 21 
	Slide 22 
	Slide 23 
	Slide 24 
	Slide 25 
	Slide 26 
	Slide 27 
	Slide 28 
	Slide 29 
	Slide 30 
	Slide 31 



	8 Final Wiltshire JLHWS
	JLHWS Consultation Outcome
	WJLHWS 2023

	9 Wiltshire ICA Work Programme Update
	11 SEND Strategy Update
	HWB March - 2023


